Open Agenda , oK

Council

Children's Services and Education
Scrutiny Sub-Committee

Tuesday January 19 2010
7.00 pm
Town Hall, Peckham Road, London SE5 8UB

Membership Reserves

Councillor Barrie Hargrove (Chair) Councillor James Barber
Councillor Nick Vineall (Vice-Chair) Councillor Michelle Holford
Councillor Jelil Ladipo Councillor Andrew Pakes
Councillor Eliza Mann Councillor Althea Smith
Councillor Jonathan Mitchell Councillor Bob Skelly

Councillor Sandra Rhule

Councillor Veronica Ward
Reverend Nicholas Elder
Colin Elliott

Jane Hole

Sharon Donno

INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

Access to information

You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and reports on this agenda as
well as the background documents used in the preparation of these reports.

Babysitting/Carers allowances

If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look after your children, an
elderly dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you could attend this meeting,
you may claim an allowance from the council. Please collect a claim form at the meeting.

Access

The council is committed to making its meetings accessible. Further details on building
access, translation, provision of signers etc for this meeting are on the council’s web site:
www.southwark.gov.uk or please contact the person below.

Contact Julie Timbrell on 020 7525 0514 or email: julie.timbrell@southwark.gov.uk

Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting

Annie Shepperd l 4
Chief Executive ‘

Date: January 11 2010

PRINTED ON
RECYCLED PAPER



cﬁ";‘.’&

Council

Children's Services and Education Scrutiny
Sub-Committee

Tuesday January 19 2010
7.00 pm
Town Hall, Peckham Road, London SE5 8UB

Order of Business

Item No. Title Page No.
PART A - OPEN BUSINESS

1. APOLOGIES

2. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR
DEEMS URGENT

In special circumstances, an item of business may be added to an agenda
within five clear working days of the meeting.

3. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS

Members to declare any personal interests and dispensation in respect of
any item of business to be considered at this meeting.

4. MINUTES 1-9

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on
November 9 2009.

5. EXECUTIVE INTERVIEWS 10-12

Executive Interviews with Councillors Lisa Rajan, Executive member for
Children’s Services, and Nicholas Stanton, Council leader.

6. ANNUAL SAFEGUARDING REPORT
7.  SINGLE FUNDING FORMULA - UPDATE 13-39

8. EARLY YEARS REVIEW - CONTINUED 40



Item No. Title Page No.

10.

1.

PARENTAL ENGAGEMENT IN PRIMARY SCHOOLS - CONTINUED 41-94

Presentation from Christine Mclnnes, Assistant Director of Children’s
Services, [Leadership & Learning Services]

MATTERS ARISING 95 -97

i) Children affected by the fire at Lakanal House;
ii) Sports provision

UPDATE WORK PROGRAMME 98

DISCUSSION OF ANY OTHER OPEN ITEMS AS NOTIFIED AT THE
START OF THE MEETING.

PART B - CLOSED BUSINESS

DISCUSSION OF ANY OTHER CLOSED ITEMS AS NOTIFIED AT THE
START OF THE MEETING AND ACCEPTED BY THE CHAIR AS
URGENT.

Date: January 11 2010



Agenda Item 4

outhoreeK.

Council

CHILDREN'S SERVICES AND EDUCATION SCRUTINY
SUB-COMMITTEE

MINUTES of the Children's Services and Education Scrutiny Sub-Committee held on
Monday November 9 2009 at 7.00 pm at Town Hall, Peckham Road, London SE5 8UB

PRESENT: Councillor Barrie Hargrove (Chair)
Councillor Eliza Mann
Councillor Jonathan Mitchell
Councillor Sandra Rhule
Councillor Veronica Ward
Reverend Nicholas Elder

Colin Elliott

Jane Hole
OFFICER Pauline Armour, Assistant Director of Access & Inclusion,
SUPPORT: Children’s Services

Pauline Easty, Senior Lawyer, Social Services
Rachael Knight, Scrutiny Project Manager

APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Vineall; apologies for
lateness were received from Councillor Mann.

NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR
DEEMS URGENT

There were none.
DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS

Members made the following declarations: Clir Ward as a governor at
Dulwich Wood Children’s Centre; Clir Mitchell as a governor at Harris
Girls’ Academy; ClIr Rhule as parent of a pupil at Kingsdale Foundation
School; Reverend Elder as the chair of governors at Kinderella Pre-
School; Jane Hole as an employee of Harris Academy at Peckham and
governor at the City of London Academy; and Colin Elliott as a parent
governor at St Saviours and St Olave’s.

1

Children's Services and Education Scrutiny Sub-Committee - Monday November 9 2009




MINUTES

[This item was deferred to the end of the meeting.]

4.1 Reverend Elder reminded the scrutiny officer that he had given his
apologies for this meeting. The minutes of the Children’s Services
and Education scrutiny sub-committee meeting held on October 5
2009 were otherwise agreed as a correct record.

REPORT ON VALIDATED SCHOOL RESULTS

5.1 Pauline Armour, Assistant Director of Access and Inclusion,
Children’s Services, led members through the report on pupils’
performance results in Southwark schools for 2009, and
highlighted the most significant outcomes. Key points raised
included as follows:

52 Southwark’s school results over the last four years have
consistently improved, and the borough’s ranking on the school
results league table has shifted - from approximately fourth to
lowest nationally to within the second top quartile. This is a great
credit to the schools and to the council’s Children’s Services
colleagues.

53 There are still concerns regarding Key Stage 1 results (KS1), as
many children are starting school with very low educational
standards and are not performing well in KS1 tests. Some groups
of children in this stage are performing considerably better than
others, and it is believed that poverty significantly affects children’s
performance. This is particularly the case with boys from African-
Caribbean backgrounds.

5.4 The council recently commissioned a piece of research across 32
primary schools, which is designed to unlock the key factors that
limit or detrimentally affect children’s performance at this stage,
and to consider how parental involvement could be increased to
help improve performance.

5.5 Children from West African backgrounds tend mainly to attend faith
schools and tend to be fairly high achieving. There are also
schools with high numbers of pupils from white working class
backgrounds that have achieved very high results. As this bucks
the borough trend that schools with such demographics have
comparatively low performance results, the council is now in a
position to challenge Headteachers and school governing bodies
by pointing to the data of good performing schools in poorer areas,

2

Children's Services and Education Scrutiny Sub-Committee - Monday November 9 2009




and by trying to analyse how these schools have done so well.

5.6 There are currently no secondary schools in the borough causing
significant concern for the council. The authority is concerned,
however, about several primary schools, one of which has gone
into ‘special measures’.

5.7 Academies are not required to provide their performance results.
However, when they opt not to the results can eventually be
obtained from the Department for Children, Schools and Families
(DCSF).

5.8 The chair asked whether the schools in poorer areas that are
performing well have high percentages of children from West
African or South American backgrounds. The Assistant Director
responded that she thinks this could be a strong factor and
remarked that the faith schools - where many West African
children are enrolled — tend to have immaculate attendance and
punctuality.

5.9 A member commented that she had hoped to see the performance
data broken down according to gender, to be able to see the
difference in results between girls and boys, as the discrepancy in
gender results at some schools signals that there are other key
factors affecting performance in addition to poverty. She
emphasised that more good practice needs to be identified for
helping black boys effectively and sought assrance that schools
where boys are not doing well are supported.

5.10 Members also queried why the KS1 results are comparatively
lower. The Assistant Director commented that she believes that
some children start school when they are too young; that more
outside readers are needed to come in to the schools to read with
children; and that perhaps generally there is merit in the
Scandanavian model in which children start school when they are
older. She further explained that some Headteachers have noticed
children transferring from nurseries who have very limited
language, numeracy and literacy skills. She added that officers
think more could be done to help the transition of children from
Early Years to reception classes.

5.11 Regarding gender difference, the Assistant Director remarked that
this seems difficult to understand, but observed that girls tend to
play different games and traditionally learn to read earlier than
boys; and that it is rare for primary aged girls to have behavioural
problems, in contrast to boys.

5.12 Members asked whether schools with there own nurseries tend to
manage the transition from Early Years to reception more
effectively. The Assistant Director replied that this does not seem
to be a pattern.

3

Children's Services and Education Scrutiny Sub-Committee - Monday November 9 2009




5.13 Members also queried whether children coming from “poor”
backgrounds means financially poor. The Assistant Director
commented that this is a complex factor, but that ‘poor’ is used to
refer primarily to children who receive free school meals. She
explained, however, that there are many families eligible for free
schools meals who do not claim them on account of the
documentation needed, which could reveal, for example, that
someone in the family is in the country illegally. She said that it is
not known whether proportionately more children claiming free
school meals are from African Caribbean backgrounds, but when a
pupil is an African Caribbean boy receiving free school meals, this
combination of factors tends to correlate with poor performance.

5.14 Members also raised the significance of male role models and
whether boys who perform poorly academically engage positively
with other activities such as sport. The Assistant Director
responded that she thinks male role models are significant where a
child’s father is absent and reported that although primary school
teaching staff is predominantly female, many schools employ male
learning mentors or teaching assistants who are deliberately
directed to work with boys. She added that some boys do tend to
behave differently regarding sports, but there is also a tendency for
boys who are doing well academically to also do well at sports.

5.15 A member emphasised that despite the various factors of a child’s
background, some schools are making a better intervention than
others. The Assistant Director agreed with the importance of this
point, and added that it highlights how some good schools are
making a difference despite being based in a poorer
neighbourhood, and that this fits with the authority’s view that all
children in Southwark can aspire to the highest level.

EARLY YEARS REVIEW - CONTINUED

6.1 The chair explained that he was yet to hear from Mike Smith,
Assistant Director of Community Services, regarding suggestions
of Early Years (EY) settings for members to visit and that an
alternative may be for scrutiny officers to contact providers.
Members discussed their preferred timing for the visits and agreed
that they should take place where possible before Christmas. It
was also confirmed that members would not require CRB checks.

6.2 The chair invited suggestions on how to use the January meeting
for this topic and how to shape the way forward for this review.

6.3 Pauline Armour offered to speak with Mike Smith for suggestions
of providers to contact, with the view that visits be arranged for four
different EY settings.

4

Children's Services and Education Scrutiny Sub-Committee - Monday November 9 2009




6.4 A member commented that there seem to be two keys aspects to
this review: one being the introduction of the single funding
formula, which has had a high profile on national news; and the
second is the general evolving picture of provision in Southwark
and the sufficiency of access to that provision.

6.5 It was explained that drop-in sessions take place for parents of
Early Years children at Sunshine House on Peckham Rd and at
the Walworth One Stop Shop. Arrangements were being made
with the relevant officers to see whether this could provide an
opportunity for members to attend at the close or start of the
sessions, in order to speak with parents.

6.6 Members approved draft ‘starter’ questions intended as a baseline
for speaking with EY providers and parents. Information was also
requested on the proportion of children accessing statutory
provision - namely those in maintained settings and those in the
care of the various PVI providers.

6.7 A member observed that there are sometimes concerns about the
adequacy of access to Early Years settings for families moving into
or across the borough. Queries were raised about how children’s
centres try to ensure access in such cases. The chair commented
that this type of issue relates to the sub-committee’s interest in the
take-up of EY places, and fits with the concern that provision is
mopped up by families ‘in-the-know’.

RESOLVED:

1. That members undertake a site visit to Early Years providers
before Christmas, with the view that visits be made to one each of
the following EY settings:

- achildren’s centre;

- a childminder (It was noted that there may be the
opportunity to meet with several childminders during the
visit to a children’s centre.);

- amaintained nursery;

- a private or voluntary nursery.

2. That note-taking be provided by scrutiny officer support.

3. That the timeframe for the review be as follows:
- March 2: CSE scrutiny sub-committee to consider a draft
report
- March 8: amended report to be submitted to OSC
- March 23: OSC approved report to be submitted to the final
Executive meeting.

4. That the visits be scheduled where possible on either a Thursday
5

Children's Services and Education Scrutiny Sub-Committee - Monday November 9 2009




7.

or Friday.

5. That the appropriate arrangements be made for members to attend
drop-in sessions for Early Years parents at Sunshine House and/or
the Walworth OSS - as proposed by officers, - with the view to ask
parents about their experiences obtaining EY places for their
children, in line with the draft questions.

6. That officers provide statistics on the proportionate numbers of
children in the different EY provider settings across the borough.

PARENTAL ENGAGEMENT IN PRIMARY SCHOOLS

7.1 The chair invited suggestions from members on how the sub-
committee could approach and undertake its review of parental
engagement in primary schools.

7.2 The Assistant Director of Children’s Services explained that Home
School Agreements are voluntary for parents, but that all schools
are expected to provide these. She noted that one Headteacher
had commented that the agreements are not worth the paper they
are written on, as he believes that they are no substitute for the
actions schools take everyday to establish good working
relationships with parents. She added that throughout her
involvement with schools, the agreements have never been
mentioned, even in relation to a behavioural or exclusion issue.

7.3 The Assistant Director further noted that as the agreements are
voluntary, many parents do not complete and return them to the
schools. Moreover, when a relationship between a family and
school starts to break down, schools do not refer back to the
agreement as a means to compel compliance or cooperation.
Relationships between parents and schools are also largely
harmonious and that the key issue here is about how parents
engage with their child(ren)’s learning.

7.4 A member referred to the policy of a local Academy, which does
not allow pupils to start attending school until the Home School
Agreement has been signed. The Assistant Director responded
that she would question the legality of that requirement, and
expects that admission could not be contingent on an agreement
being signed.

7.5 The chair queried the merit of possibly playing down the
significance of the agreements, as making the schools’
expectations of parents clear must in some cases be of benefit.
The Assistant Director responded that she thinks that the schools
work hard to explain their expectations and that what is written in
the agreements is very important, but that Headteachers have

6

Children's Services and Education Scrutiny Sub-Committee - Monday November 9 2009




indicated that what is done on an everyday basis has more
influence. She added that if the agreements could be used pro-
actively, that they could significantly help some of the children
discussed earlier.

7.6 A member commented that the sub-committee needs to know what
parental involvement measures are and how they can be
improved. It was also suggested that the sub-committee should try
to assess why in some schools in deprived areas all children bring
their homework books back the next day, whereas in other similar
schools many children forget to return their books.

7.7 Members also suggested that the sub-committee talk with school
governors and parents where possible, rather than simply
Headteachers, in order to obtain a more balanced picture of the
issue. Members also agreed that in view of the limited time left for
the review, that the objective should be to identify good practice
that might help some schools to improve their engagement.

7.8 Members considered how best to obtain the view of parents. It was
anticipated, for example, that if schools were to invite parents to
attend a meeting, that the parents who would attend are more
likely to already be engaged; also that permission from
Headteachers would be needed for members to approach parents
in school playgrounds, as is done by Ofsted inspectors.

RESOLVED:

1. That site visits be arranged for members to attend approximately 4
local primary schools (2 community schools and 2 faith schools),
with the view to speak with the Headteacher, a school governor
and possibly parents and children, to raise questions about
parental engagement;

2. and to query the Headteachers, for example, on whether there are
significant numbers of parents that they find ‘hard-to-reach’ and
what strategies they may employ to engage with these parents.

8. INFORMATION ITEMS

8.1 Impact of the Lakanal Fire on resident children

Members commended the fact that 81% of children affected by the
Lakanal House fire had returned to school within five days.
Members queried, however, what assistance the children received
once they were back at school. Pauline explained that an
educational psychologist was provided at each school and

7

Children's Services and Education Scrutiny Sub-Committee - Monday November 9 2009




activities coordinated for the children at Cator St, as the incident
occurred so close to the summer holiday. Advice was also
provided to the schools on how they could support the children,
and Pauline observed that Brunswick Park primary school (where
most of the affected children attend) is known for effectively
supporting children's emotional development.

8.2 Sports Provision
A member referred to the October 29 letter from Romi Bowen in

response to the sub-committee’s queries regarding sport provision.
It was suggested that the DCFS be requested to clarify what is

meant by access to 5 hours of sports activities weekly, - in
particular whether the expectation is that this is provided by
schools.

8.3 Co-option of a voting Headteachers’ Executive representative

The chair commented that he would support the co-option of a
voting representative of the Headteachers' Executive, as the voting
status could support the representative's engagement in the sub-
committee's work. Other members agreed. It was therefore
suggested, that in view of the legal complications that would first
need to be resolved, that the sub-committee invite a representative
of the Headteachers' Executive to attend and contribute to the sub-
committee’s meetings in a non-voting capacity in the meantime.

RESOLVED:

Lakanal Fire

That education officers be requested to provide a brief written
update on the general wellbeing of the children affected by the fire
several months on; and to confirm whether any of the children
have been referred for further adolescent psychological
counselling.

Sports provision

That a letter be sent to the Department for Children, Schools and
Families (DCSF), requesting that they clarify what is meant by 5
hours of sports provision per week.

Co-opted members
i. That, subject to the approval of the OSC chair and vice-
chair, the sub-committee invites the Headteachers'
Executive to appoint a representative to become a non-
voting member of the sub-committee for the remainder
of the 2009/10 civic year; and

8

Children's Services and Education Scrutiny Sub-Committee - Monday November 9 2009




9.

i. That the sub-committee asks OSC to
consider introducing a co-opted members voting rights
scheme, which would apply across all the scrutiny
committees, when the scrutiny arrangements are re-
established following the 2010 council elections.

iii. That a letter be sent to the Headteachers’ Executive,
inviting the attendance of a representative at the next
two meetings, briefly outlining the issues that the sub-
committee is considering; and explaining that the
provision for co-opting voting members is being looked
into.

2009/10 WORK PROGRAMME

9.1 Members discussed the sub-committee's proposed work
programme for the remainder of the municipal year. In view of
interest shown in a current council project for 14 to 19 year olds,
involving the Learning Skills Councils and other providers, an
update and overview of the initiative was requested.

RESOLVED:

1. That the report back on the review of integrated youth provision
listed for the January 19 meeting, be shifted to the March 2
meeting;

2. and that an overview of the project for 14 to 19 year olds

coordinated by the Learning Skills Council also be added to the
March meeting.

The meeting closed at 9.30pm.

Children's Services and Education Scrutiny Sub-Committee - Monday November 9 2009




10 Agenda ltem 5

Southwark Children’s Services and Education Scrutiny Sub-Committee
Executive Interview - January 19 2010

Questions to Councillor Rajan, Executive member for Children’s Services:

1. Have you got the latest figures for teenage pregnancy levels and obesity
for Southwark? How do these figures compare with previous statistics on
these two issues?

2. Could the Executive member give an update on the restructuring of the
Youth Service? How is the service ensuring that the voluntary sector and
Tenants and Residents Associations, also providing youth services, are
involved in stakeholder meetings taking place at this time?

3. Could the Executive member give an update on the Connexions Service?
What numerical impact is the service making on the numbers of NEET
young people in Southwark?

4, Following the publication of the Ofsted Report on the Adult Learning
Service judged to be satisfactory, what key headings in the Action Plan
will ensure that services which prepare people for employment and the
teaching of English as a second language will be improved? How will the
Action Plan be funded given the comments by the Finance Director?

5. Could the Executive member for Children’s Services give the sub-
committee an update on Youth Council development and the election of
representatives onto Community Councils? How will Youth Council
representatives input into Community Councils to ensure a significant
impact?

6. What steps have been taken by the Executive members in response to
the recommendations in the sub-committee’s report on Youth provision in
Southwark.

7. How does the Local Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB) perform its
quality assurance role? What evidence is there to show service
improvement at system and frontline practitioner level?

8. Is the LSCB gathering and using the experience of children, young people
and families to inform improvements to safeguarding arrangements?

9. What safeguards are in place to protect children and families from
inappropriate child protection interventions?

10. Do all Child Protection Plans contain specific, achievable, child focussed
outcomes intended to safeguard and promote the welfare of the child?
Are these measurable and are those protection plans independently
reviewed?



11

11. Please provide recruitment and retention figures for the last three years
for Southwark Social Workers?

12. What progress is being made with Southwark Youth Councils and do you
have any views on how they might interface with scrutiny?

13. To what extent has counselling been provide to children affected by the
Sumner Road fire? Please set out counselling arrangements for both
those families displaced as well as those who have been allowed to return
to their homes.

Questions to Councillor Stanton, Council Leader:

14. How is the Council ensuring a smooth transfer of all post 16 education
from the Learning and Skills Council to Southwark Education?

15. How is the Council coordinating all the many agencies offering post 16
work experience and placements; and how is the Council ensuring good
quality placements and teaching?

16. Is the Leader satisfied with the progress of the Southwark BSF
programme? Have any financial problems arisen due to the current
economic climate?

17. What remedial measures are now in place to ensure that KS 2 English
and Maths results improve in those Primary Schools where results have
not been as good as the previous year?

18. What does the Executive member see as the biggest challenges to the
department over the next 24 months for Southwark primary schools?

19. In light of the continuing financial crisis and the number of homes being
repossessed, can the Executive member/s:

i. Advise what impact this has had on the education of children
whose families have had their homes repossessed?

ii. Advise what safeguards are in place particularly for those children
who have had to be withdrawn or transferred to other schools
within or outside of the borough to ensure that any detrimental
effects on their education are minimised?

iii. Confirm that every effort is being made to ensure that any
necessary advice and assistance is being offered for these
families? — and confirm what advice and assistance is being
offered.

iv. Advise how families access this advice/assistance, - i.e. are they
contacted independently after repossession, or do families have to
find out about such assistance themselves?



20.

21.

22.

12

Though very welcome, please explain what contribution the expansion of
St Anthony’s RC Primary School will make towards helping address
under-capacity in the East Dulwich area?

Do you think there is a need to address the incongruity of children living
just outside that year’s catchment area of their nearest school, who end
up because of distance from their remaining choices, only being accepted
into the 4th, 5th or sometimes even 6th choice?

Do you have any views about the inconsistent level of Sports Provision
across Southwark Schools?



13

Agenda Item 7

Item No. | Classification: | Date: Meeting Name:
7 Open 19" January | Children’s Services Scrutiny

2010

Report title: Early Years Single Funding Formula - Update

Ward(s) or groups All

affected:

From: Mike Smith, Assistant Director, 0-5 Services and
Community, Children’s Services

RECOMMENDATION(S)

1.

The Committee is asked to note the progress on consultation for the introduction
of a single funding formula for all early years settings across the borough.

The Committee is asked to comment on the recent decision by the Minister of
State at the Department for Children, Schools and Families to defer
implementation of the single funding formula regulations until April 2011.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.

In June 2007, the government announced its intention to require all local
authorities to develop funding formulae for providers of free early education in line
with funding arrangements in schools. The formulae were to cover the provision
of early education across all sectors and should have the effect of creating a level
playing field for all providers.

Interim guidance on what the formulae should look like and which factors might
be included was issued by the Department for Children, Schools and Families in
July 2008 and this was followed by practice guidance in July 2009 which outlined
precisely what was expected in the single funding formula.

Local authorities are required to keep a register of approved providers of free
early education and only providers on this register may claim payment for the
number of hours per week that are provided for each child up to a maximum of
12.5 hours. The free entitlement will increase to 15 hours per week from 1%
September 2010.

Local authorities are able to apply conditions to providers who wish to be included
in the register. All providers must be registered with Ofsted and therefore be
subject to regular inspection.

The guidance requires local authorities to plan for four interrelated changes:

¢ Introduction of funding based on participation rather than places

e Development of a single formula covering all settings

e Extension of the free entitlement from 12.5 hours to 15 hours per week term
time only

o Ensure, as far as possible, that parents have flexibility in using the services

Since the council published its proposals in November 2009, the Minister of State

in the Department of Children, Schools and Families has decided to postpone
implementation of the Government’s proposals for 12 months. As a consequence,

1



14

the council must decide whether to push ahead with implementation as a
pathfinder authority, in which case special dispensation will be required from
parliament, or to defer implementation until 2011.

Subject to any responses in the consultation, it is likely that the final
recommendation will be to continue with implementation in 2010 as the current
proposals have been designed such that they will make only minimal changes to
funding arrangements this year but will give us an opportunity to test out the likely
impact of changes in future years as we will gain real experience of operating the
new system.

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION

Participation based funding

10.

11.

12.

At present nursery classes in schools are funded on the basis of the number of
places available. Some schools offer only full time places to parents, some
schools offer only part time places and the remainder offer a combination of part
time and full time places. Taking a typical size nursery class of 26 places, this
would accommodate 26 full time children, or 52 part time children. If the places
were evenly split between part time and full time this would mean there would be
13 full time places and 26 part time places. Irrespective of which of the above
scenarios applied each school would receive the same funding based on a 26
place nursery i.e. 26 units of nursery funding.

The introduction of participation based funding will mean that the above three
scenarios would not necessarily attract the same level of funding. Assuming
Southwark continues to fund full time places on the same basis as at present,
and part time places are funded at half the value of full time places then the
change to participation based funding would make no material difference to
schools. However, at present a full time place in a school will count as meeting
the 15 hours entitlement for early education but a part time place would not and
schools that offer part time places will therefore have to extend the hours they
offer with the likelihood of incurring additional costs which may need to be
reflected through a higher rate for part time places than 7% the value of a full time
place.

All non-maintained school settings are already funded on the basis of
participation so this change will not adversely impact on these settings.

Single formula covering all settings

13.

14.

Following lengthy discussions with all sectors working in early years we
concluded that the following factors should be taken into account when
developing a formula:

e Basic hourly rate.

e Social deprivation supplement.

o Staff qualification supplement.

Although the regulations require us to fund all settings according to a single
formula, it does not require that different types of settings should all be funded at
the same hourly rate. Consequently, it is possible to fund nursery schools at a
different rate than, say, settings in the private, voluntary and independent sectors

2



15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

15

(PVI settings). However, if we are to fund settings at different rates, we are
required to have a rational basis for doing so.

In developing the funding options, we carried out an analysis of costs across all
sectors. The initial assessment of settings in the PVI sector created problems as
there was such variation and we were unable to draw from this a rational
formula. Consequently we looked at the hourly rate charged in this sector (on the
basis that these settings were at least breaking even and therefore covering their
costs). We compared the median hourly charge for a place in these settings and
with the amount we were providing currently through the Free Early Education
Entittement payments. Since the latter value was fractionally higher than the
former value we concluded that the current rate in most cases provided adequate
resources to deliver the entitlement.

The hourly rate currently provided for nursery classes in mainstream schools is
below that provided to PVI settings. Our analysis shows that the economies of
scale offered by the larger organisation and the fact that the higher rates payable
for teachers is offset by the lower staffing ratios required in schools, means that
this lower rate is sufficient to enable school nurseries to deliver the entitlement.

The hourly rate currently provided for nursery schools is much higher than for all
other settings. Our analysis shows that this higher figure is not unreasonable as
nursery schools have to cover the higher costs associated with employing a
headteacher on national conditions of service and the relatively higher costs
associated with being smaller institutions than primary schools.

All local authorities are required to include a deprivation factor in their formula
and for simplicity we have simply taken the current value attached to nursery
aged pupils in schools as the basis for funding all settings. Qualifying children
are those living in Lower Super Output Areas which have a social deprivation
indicator which places them in the lowest quartile nationally. Consequently, a
relatively high number of children living in Southwark will attract this additional
funding.

Finally, in recognition that all settings are required to increase the level of
qualified staff they employ, which in itself brings an expectation of higher
remuneration, we have proposed the introduction of a qualifications factor. At
present, the additional costs of employing qualified staff are covered by
dedicated government grants and therefore we will not be distributing any
resources on this factor in 2010 but the factor is being included in the expectation
that government grants to cover these costs will disappear in the near future.

Extension of free hours from 12.5 to 15 per week

20.

21.

22.

As indicated in paragraph 9 above, those schools offering full time places will
already meet the extended hours. However, schools that currently offer part time
places will need to extend the number of hours to 15 if they are to continue to
attract the full funding for these children.

Although the current proposals do not offer any additional payments to schools
offering part time places, many schools in this situation have indicated that they
expect to incur additional costs and we are currently evaluating what these may
be and the final proposals may take account of these additional hours.

Most PVI settings already provide more than 12.5 hours to their clientele and the
extended hours is most likely to offer them the opportunity to reduce their weekly

3



16

rates on the basis that they will be attracting an extra 2.5 hours of funding
through this source.

Flexible offer

23.

24.

The government is keen to see parents getting greater flexibility in how they
access the 15 hours so that they can pick and choose the days they need and
how long their child attends. The flexibility is subject to the sustainability of
settings and we know that settings have had financial difficulties where they have
offered complete flexibility to parents.

The diversity of offer in Southwark already offers considerable flexibility for
parents and this issue did not feature strongly when we last carried out a
childcare accessibility assessment. However, we will continue to keep the matter
under review as changes are implemented.

Policy implications

25.

26.

All the proposals being consulted on are required by central government.

At present the allocation of part time and full time places in schools does not
have a clear rational basis as these decisions were made many years ago and
there is no record of the policy basis for such arrangements. As the allocation will
have significant impact if the request for differential rates for part time and full
time places is taken into account, it will be necessary to bring forward in future a
clear policy framework for the allocation of full and part time provision. For the
current year it is proposed that no changes are made to the historical practice.

Community Impact Statement

27.

Details of the impact of these changes appear in the consultation document
which is attached.

Resource implications

28.

29.

A range of early years settings are currently funded to provide free early
education in Southwark, including:

a) Maintained Schools:
i.  Nursery schools
ii.  Primary schools (Nursery Classes)

b) Non-Maintained Settings
i. Private sector settings
ii. Voluntary sector settings
ii. Independent schools
iv.  Council, College and NHS-Managed settings

Funding for the FEEE is provided to the Local Authority through a government
funding mechanism known as the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). In
Southwark, total FEEE expenditure budgeted for within the DSG in 2009-10 is as
follows:



30.

31.

17

Sector Total Funding
2009-10

Maintained Nursery Schools £3,536,000

Maintained Primary Schools (nursery element only) £7,184,000

Non Maintained Early Years Settings (including PVI £3,690,919

and Council-managed provision)

Total £14,410,919

The Council also receives additional funding through the Standards Fund to
finance the extension of the FEEE from 12.5 hours to 15 hours. In 2009-10
Southwark has received an allocation of £520,000 for this purpose. This
allocation will be increased substantially in 2010-11 to £2.4M in order to
recognise parents’ new entitlement to access this level of provision.

The proposals contained in the consultation document deal only with the
distribution of DSG and Standards Fund resources. No additional funding will be
required from the council’s core budget.

Consultation

32.

33.

34.

These proposals were developed in consultation with a FEEE Steering Group
which had representatives from the Schools Forum (including a Governor,
Nursery School Head and Primary School Head), private and voluntary sector
setting, parents, childminders and Council officers. It was chaired by Mike Smith,
Assistant Director of Children’s Services (0-5 and Community).

Progress on developing proposals was reported to the Schools Forum at its
meetings in September 2008, June 2009, October 2009 and December 2009.

The proposals are now out to full consultation with all affected stakeholders. A
final report will be produced and presented to Schools Forum in January 2010
before a final decision is made by Individual Member Decision.

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS

35.

Further supplementary advice will be sought once final proposals have been
drawn up.



BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

18

Background Papers Held At Contact
Statement to Parliament-School Early|Divisional Project|Cherrelle Baker-
Years Funding 25 June 07 from The|Management Team Duff

Minister of State for Schools and 14-19

Children's Services

0207 525 4953

Learners - Jim Knight 0-5 Services and

Community
Implementation of a single funding|Divisional Project|Cherrelle ~ Baker-
formula for early years (Interim|{Management Team Duff
guidance for local authorities July|Children's Services 0207 525 4953
2008) 0-5 Services and

Community
Implementing the Early Years Single|Divisional Project|Cherrelle Baker-
Funding Formula (Practice Guidance|Management Team Duff
July 2009) Children's Services 0207 525 4953

0-5 Services and

Community
Early Years Single Funding Formula for|Divisional Project|Cherrelle Baker-
maintained schools letter dated 28 Management Team Duff
October 2009 Rt Hon Dawn Primarolo|Children's Services 0207 525 4953
MP — Minister of State for Children,|0-5 Services and
Young People and Families Community
Early Years Single Funding Formula|Divisional Project|Cherrelle Baker-
letter dated 10 December 2009 from|Management Team Duff
Ann Gross Director Early Years, and|Children's Services 0207 525 4953
Extended Services and SEN Group|0-5 Services and
DCSF and Stephen Kingdom, Head of| Community

School Funding Unit, DCSF

APPENDICES
No. Title
Appendix 1 Changes to the Delivery and Funding of the
Free Early Education Entitlement,
Consultation Document (November 2009)
Appendix 2 Early Years Single Funding Formula letter

dated 10 December 2009 from Ann Gross
Director Early Years, and Extended Services
and SEN Group DCSF and Stephen Kingdom,
Head of School Funding Unit, DCSF




19

AUDIT TRAIL

This section must be included in all reports.

Lead Officer | Strategic Director of Children’s Services.

Report Author | Mike Smith, Assistant Director, 0-5 Services and Community

Version | Final

Dated | 8" January 2010

Key Decision? | Yes

CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / EXECUTIVE

MEMBER

Officer Title Comments Sought | Comments included
Strategic Director for Legal and No No
Democratic Services
Finance Director Yes Yes
List other officers here
Executive Member No No
Date final report sent to Constitutional/Community Month/date/year
Council/Scrutiny Team

Note: Consultation with other officers

If you have not consulted, or sought comments from the borough solicitor or the
finance director, you must state this in the audit trail.



CHILDREN'S SERVICES

London Borough of Southwark
Changes to the Delivery and Funding of the Free Early Education Entitlement
Consultation Document (November 2009)
A. BACKGROUND
Introduction

1. All children in England and Wales are currently entitled to 12.5 hours of free nursery education,
38 weeks a year, from the term after their third birthday until they reach statutory school age
(the first term following their fifth birthday). This is referred to in the Department for Children,
Schools and Families (DCSF) guidance as the Free Early Education Entitlement Offer,
previously known as the Minimum Free Entitlement. Parents may choose, subject to
availability, to take this up in a maintained school or in a non-maintained early years setting,
such as a private, voluntary or independent sector nursery.

2. The Government is changing the regulations regarding funding and provision of the Free Early
Education Entitlement (FEEE) in England and Wales. In line with this local authorities are
required to:

a. fund nursery education on the basis of actual children accessing provision, rather than
on the basis of number of places (from April 2010);

b. develop a common and transparent Early Years Single Funding Formula for nursery
education that applies across maintained schools and non-maintained early years
settings (from April 2010);

c. extend the Free Early Education Entitlement from 12.5 to 15 hours a week (from
September 2010);

d. ensure that the Free Early Education Entitlement is delivered in a flexible manner that
as far as practicable responds to parents’ choices (from September 2010).

3. This paper sets out proposals for the implementation of these requirements, and invites the
views of all stakeholders. A consultation response form is attached at the end of this document.

Process for developing options

4. A FEEE Steering Group has been established as a consultative body with representatives from
the Schools Forum (including a Governor, Nursery School Head and Primary School Head),
private and voluntary sector settings, parents, childminders and Council officers. It is chaired by
Mike Smith, Assistant Director of Children’s Services (0-5 and Community).

5. Progress on developing proposals has been reported to the Schools Forum at its meetings in
September 2008, June 2009, and October 2009.

6. Officers have explored options through the FEEE Steering Group, with the views of the
stakeholders having a key role in shaping the final proposals. However, the proposals set out in
this consultation document have been drawn up by officers of the council taking account of
both the views of the steering group and the guidance offered by DCSF.

sovthwark [T~ LohnK

Primary Care Trust Council




21

Current funding of early education in Southwark

7. A range of early years settings are currently funded to provide free early education in
Southwark, including:

a. Maintained Schools:
i. Nursery Schools
ii. Primary Schools (Nursery Classes)

b. Non-maintained Settings
i. Private sector seitings
i. Voluntary sector settings
iii. Independent schools
iv. Council, College and NHS-Managed settings

8. Funding for the FEEE is provided to the Local Authority through a government funding
mechanism known as the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). In Southwark, total FEEE
expenditure budgeted for within the DSG in 2009-10 is as follows:

Sector Total Funding
2009-10

Maintained Nursery Schools £3,536,000

Maintained Primary Schools (nursery element only) £7,184.000

Non-maintained Early Years Settings (including PVI £3,690,919

and Council-managed provision)

Total £14,410,919

B. PARTICIPATION-BASED FUNDING

9. Since the introduction of the universal free entitlement to early learning in April 2004, non-
maintained settings have been funded on the basis of participation (i.e. actual numbers of
eligible children attending), determined on the basis of a termly headcount.

10. Maintained schools, on the other hand, have been funded for their nursery provision on the
basis of the number of places provided — regardless of the actual numbers of children
attending. The DCSF requires that from April 2010 nursery places in maintained schools must
be funded on the basis of participation, with numbers determined via a termly headcount.

11. Southwark is proposing:

a. To implement participation-based funding for maintained schools from April 2010 (i.e.
from the start of the summer term), as required by DCSF;

b. To continue to fund non-maintained settings on the basis of participation.

c. To determine the numbers of children attending settings via a data count on the census
day each term: the third Thursday in January, third Thursday in May and first Thursday
in October. Settings will be asked to record for each child on the register on census
day the number of free early education hours provided during that week.



22

d. To inform settings of indicative funding allocations for the financial year starting 1 April
by the preceding 28 February. The indicative allocations will be based on the preceding
January, May and October counts.

e. To provide maintained schools with a termly statement comparing the indicative funding
for that term with the actual funding due based on participation, and to reconcile the
difference on an annual basis in arrears during the Spring term.

f. To fund non-maintained settings, as at present, through termly payments based on
numbers of children.

C. THE EARLY YEARS SINGLE FUNDING FORMULA

Cost analysis

12.

13.

14.

15.

In developing proposals for its Early Years Single Funding Formula, officers have analysed the
current costs of provision. It is evident that there are significant differences in the costs of
different sectors due to factors such as:

L.evel of qualifications required;
Staff ratios in respective setlings;
National pay conditions;

National pension schemes;
Management requirements;

Size of selting;

Other differential costs.

@rpao T

Under the current arrangements the funding varies for the three principal types of setting.
Costs across the PVI sector vary greatly not least because of the mixture of tenancy
arrangements seen across the borough. The most reliable indicator of actual cost across this
sector is the average fee rate. Using the current notified fee rate and the current service offer
amongst registered providers, the median fee charged by PVI1 settings for children aged 3 and
4 is £3.62. This compares with an hourly rate paid to PVI settings of £3.73 an hour.

The most reliable indicator of cost across the maintained sector is to take current age weighted
pupil funding as this is broadly compiled on the basis of the actual costs of service delivery.
These provide hourly costs of £3.36 for nursery classes in primary schools and £6.43 for
nursery schools.

As in other Local Authorities, the cost of nursery schools is significantly higher than for other
settings. This is principally because they have proportionately higher fixed costs such as a
headteacher on national pay scales. The DCSF has advised Local Authorities that they must
safeguard the future of nursery schools through the EYSFF process.

Formula Proposais

16.

It is proposed that the Early Years Single Funding Formula should comprise the following
factors:

a. Basic hourly rate.
b. Social deprivation supplement.
c. Staff qualification supplement.



23

a. Basic Hourly Rates

17.

It is proposed that separate basic hourly rates should be set for the three main categories of
settings to reflect their differential costs, and that these basic hourly rates should be based on
the current hourly rates as identified in paragraphs 13 and 14 above.

Type of Setting Current hourly rate
(2009/10)

Non-maintained (including private, voluntary and
independent settings) £3.73
Maintained primary schools (nursery classes)

£3.36
Maintained nursery schools

£6.43

b. Social Deprivation Supplement

18.

19.

20.

The DCSF requires Local Authorities to include a factor within their EYSFF to provide
enhanced funding to meet the additional needs of children from socially deprived backgrounds
and those with low level special educational needs. In the maintained sector, funding related fo
social deprivation is already provided, based on two factors: eligibility for free school meals and
the child’'s postcode matched to the Income Deprivation Affecting Children Index (IDACI).
There is currently no social deprivation funding for PVI settings. The FSM factor is not relevant
for early years settings.

it is proposed to set a social deprivation hourly supplement of 36p an hour for all settings,
based on the amount currently provided to maintained schools for social deprivation and
children with low level special educational needs. The social deprivation factor will be targeted
at the children living in the 25% most disadvantaged superoutput areas, as ranked by IDACI.

The social deprivation factor will be paid to non-maintained settings directly through the
EYSFF. Maintained schools will continue to receive deprivation and low level SEN funding for
nursery age children through their mainstream school funding.

c. Staff Qualification Supplement

21.

22.

It is proposed tfo introduce a staff qualifications supplement to incentivise the recruitment and
retention of graduate level early years professionals in settings. This will be targeted at non-
maintained settings, as maintained schools are already required to employ teachers and are
funded accordingly.

At present short term funding is available to support the additional costs of employing early
years professionals through the Graduate Leader Fund within the Sure Start, Early Years and
Childcare Grant. Therefore, at this stage it is proposed to set the value for this element at zero.
Agreeing this as a formula factor now will enable us to allocate a value at a future point shouid
this grant no longer be available.



24

23. The table below provides a summary of the funding proposals outlined in paragraphs 16-22.

24,

25,

Type of Proposed

Setting Basic Social Staff Total Hourly Total Hourly
Hourly Deprivation | Qualification Rate Rate

Rate (25% (75% less
disadvantaged) | disadvantaged)

Non-

maintained | o3 73 36p 0 £4.09 £3.73

Settings

Maintained

Primary

Schools £3.36 36p 0 £3.72 £3.36

(Nursery

Classes)

Maintained

Nursery £6.43 36p 0 £6.79 £6.43

Schools

The council has yet to agree its approach to inflation but the Basic Hourly Rates will be
augmented by the inflation level that is agreed as part of the school budget setting process.
The DCSF has indicated that it will make additional resources available for the implementation
of its proposals for delivery of the FEEE and if this is forthcoming, the values will be amended
accordingly.

It is proposed to review these rates each year as part of the Council's budget setting process.

D. EXTENSION OF FREE EARLY ENTITLEMENT AND FLEXIBILITY

26.

27.

28.

The DCSF is extending the Free Early Education Entitlement from 12.5 to 15 hours a week by
September 2010. In Southwark, approximately 25% of children already receive at least 15
hours of free early education a week, and we intend to extend this to the remainder of 3 and 4
year olds during 2010-11.

The majority of non-maintained settings already provide more than 15 hours of early education
and childcare a week; in many cases parents pay for additional hours over and above the 12.5
free hours. On this basis, we believe that many settings will find it relatively straightforward to
extend the number of free hours, providing additional funding is available. It is therefore
proposed that all non-maintained settings will be funded to provide up to 15 hours of free early
education from April 2010, i.e. from the start of the summer term, one term ahead of the
statutory requirement.

Maintained schools currently provide a mixture of part time places (12.5 hours a week) and full
time places (30 hours a week). Southwark will be providing advice and support to enable
schools to extend their part time offer to 15 hours per week, but we recognise that there may
be some cases where schools cannot do so before September 2010 because it involves a
change in the organisation of the school day mid-way through the year. In order that schools
who demonstrate that they cannot make the necessary arrangements to increase from 12.5



25

hours to 15 hours by April 2010 are not financially penalised for this during the 2010 summer
term, it is proposed that arrangements are made for schools to request funding for part time
places on the basis of 15 hours for the Summer term. From September 2010, all maintained
and non-maintained settings will be funded on the basis of actual hours provided.

Full time and part time places

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

Maintained primary schools and nursery schools in Southwark currently have the option of
offering full school day nursery places as well as part time places. Some schools only offer part
time places, some only full time and some a mixture of both. There are no agreed criteria
across Southwark for the allocation of full time places.

The FEEE Steering Group recommended that Southwark should continue to provide free full
time places in nursery provision, but that these should be allocated according fo common
criteria to ensure that full time places are targeted at the children most likely to benefit from the
additional hours of education. There was also support for the principle that these full time
places should be distributed across non-maintained as well maintained settings.

There are a number of policy factors which may impact on the future of full time places. Most
pressingly, the Government is currently consuiting on proposals that from September 2011 all
children should be able to start in reception classes in the September after they turn four, but
that if parents do not wish them to start school they should be able to receive full time funding
at this age in a non-maintained setting.

In this context no change is proposed for 2010-11 to the existing policy of schools using local
discretion to allocate their gquota of full time and part time places. Funding will be allocated on
the same basis as the funding for the free entitlement hours, namely pupil participation up to 30
hours for a full time pupil in a maintained school. -

This policy will need to be reviewed once the national policy direction in respect of entry to
reception classes is confirmed.

Flexibility

34.

The DCSF requires Local Authorities to ensure that a range of flexible options are available for
parents in accessing the FEEE. For instance, parents may wish their children to access 15
hours of early education over three days rather than five half day sessions. Southwark will
encourage and support settings to be as flexible as they are able, but there is no requirement
that all settings must provide a flexible offer. Southwark will consider building financial
incentives for flexibility into future versions of the EYSFF if evidence emerges of significant
unmet demand for flexibility.

E. IMPACT ASSESSMENT

35.

Appendix 2 includes an assessment of the impact of implementing the EYSFF on funding for
individual settings, assuming a similar level of participation fo the present pattern.

36. Non-maintained settings would generally benefit financially from the new EYSFF in 2010-11,

through accessing additional funding for social deprivation.

37. Many maintained settings would however be at risk of a reduction in funding, chiefly where

schools have historically had unfilled places which would not be funded through the
participation mechanism.



26

F. TRANSITIONAL ARRANGEMENTS

38. To ameliorate the impact of the transition to the EYSFF and participation-based funding, It is
proposed that funding allocations are adjusted so that in 2010-11 no maintained school will
lose more than 5% compared with their 2009-10 budget. The impact of applying this
transitional measure is also set out in Appendix Two.

39. No schools will be funded for more than the agreed number of full time equivalent places for
which they have received funding in 2009-10.

40. Any savings in funding to maintained primary schools for early education arising from
implementing the EYSFF will be held as a contingency to take into account potential increases
in the numbers of children accessing provision. It should be noted that if all schools were to fill
all their places, there would be no reduction in funding, and any increase in numbers of
children in non-maintained settings would require additional resources over and above those
allocated in 2009-10.



27

Appendix One: The Policy Context

1.

National guidance

The key national guidance is Implementing an Early Years Single Funding Formula:
Practice guidance (DCSF, July 2009). This document sets out the Government's
expectations for the Early Years Single Funding Formula (EYSFF) and provides guidance
on how the formulae should be designed and implemented. It is available here:

http://www.dcsf.gov.uk/everychildmatters/resources-and-practice/IG00611/

Single Funding Formula for Maintained Nursery Schools

On the 28 October 2009, Dawn Primorolo, Minister for Children, wrote to local authorities
regarding the funding of maintained nursery schools through the EYSFF. She stressed that
the implementation of the EYSFF should not threaten the viability of nursery schools, and
that where appropriate their higher operating costs should be recognised. The letter is
available here:

http://www.dcsf.gov.uk/everychildmatters/earlyyears/fundingreform/fundingreform/

Legislation

The Apprenticeships, Schools, Children and Learners Bill, currently going through
parliament, proposed changes to the legal framework for the funding of the free entitlement
for 3 and 4 year olds. At present, maintained settings are funded from the Individual
Schools Budget, and PVI settings are funded from the Centrally Retained part of the
Schools Budget. Following passage of the Bill, both maintained settings and PVI settings
will be funded from the Individual Schools Budget. In addition, relevant parts of the School
Finance Regulations will apply to the PVI funding.



28

¥86'73- 189'763 06163 599'663 ¥e ve 4 9¢ |0042S [elpayie)
¥85'63- 602813 C99'LLL3 €99°L613 g'sy GGy gey 0s [ooyog Aleullld 10[8Wwe)
¥85'63- 6.02813 902'LLL3 €99°1613 614 514 57 0S Alewld yied yomsunig
LBL V3 0v0°L63 ~ 0LE'Y93 L£8'G63 Gg'glL Gg'gl gel S¢ Alewld ebuelg Jowssseg
L0973 v2e’'163 Al 1£8°G63 Sve Sve G'¢e G¢ [ooyog Alewlld uspusjieg
€99°C3 0006813 0006813 €99°'1613 67 6v 0S 0S |ooyog Alewld J8}eS pauyly
L6Lv3 0v0°L63 - BLL983 1£8'G63 §'ee g'ee S6l G¢ |00ydg Alewlld uolqly
[ouaiaiqg sjuswobuene | uonedionied oL 6002 600¢ 6002 0L |ooyds jo saweN
Jeuonisues} uo paseq -600Z sooejd uwnny Jawwng Bundg -600Z papuni
seyejunowy | Buipung Buipungy EIE 314 314 sooejd 314
44SA3 lenjoy |en)}oy jenjoy

uonedioiued jo s|aA3] JualInd Bulwnsse sjooyas Alewlid paulejuiepy uo 44SA3 jo joeduwi jeuajod :auQ ajqel
‘wialsAs Jualing
sy} ubnouy; seop Il se wa)sAs mau sy} ybnouy) Buipuny swes ay] aA190a1 pinom sa2e|d s}l [|B pajji} JeU} [00YIS B ‘JanemoH ‘44SA3 pesodoud sy Jo
uoneoidde ay) ybnoiyl SS8| £E€6FF SAIS081 pPINOM [O0YDS B 1Byl SuesW £86H3- 10 sainbly e og ‘paljdde usaq sey uonosjold |euonisuel) Jaje ‘swa)sAs
Buipun; mau pssodoid pue juaind 8yl ybnouyy 1oeiie pinom uoisiaoid jo uleped siuy Buipuny sy} usamiag aoualisiip ayl smoys (juid) g uwnjod
‘uono8)o.Ld [euolISUEI] INOYIM ‘44SAT 8y} ybnouy) joeine pjnom uoisiaold jo useped siyy Buipuny ayj smoys (an|q sjed) /2 uwnjo)
‘Buipuny aoeld Jo Wa)sAs Juasaid ay) ybnolayy 1oelje pinom uoisianoid jo uieped siyl Buipuny sy} smoys (mojjeA) g uwn|o)
"S|00Yos Jo} @9juelens) Buipung wnwiul 8y} jo joedwi 8y} JUNOJOE OJUl 9¥e)} Jou op saunbly esey] -

"0L/600¢ Ul pspuny saoe(d
314 JO Jequinu 8y} Uey} aJ0W IO} papun} [00YdS OU pue ‘0L-600Z UIM pasedwod %G uey) aiow Buiso| [ooyds ou jo sjuswebuelle [euolisuel] -
Jnoy ue J9'¢3 Jo el ay} je Buipuny -
"yoea sinoy G| Jo saoejd ued om} Jo ‘sinoy Q¢ s|enba (Buipuny jo Jun juaund ay}) aoe|d jusjeAainbs awi N} 8UQ -
(600z uwnne pue Jawwns ‘Buuds) swJs) 8a.y) 1se| 8y} Ul se saoe|d Jo dn aye) swes ay) ypm ‘Buipuny soe|d ueyy Jeyjel buipuny uonedioiued -
:suondwnsse Buimojjo) 8yl uo paseq 44SAJ eyl Bunuasws|dwi jo sjooyos Atewiid paujejuiew uo joedw sy} sjppow suQ s|gqe |
sjooyas Aleuwilid paulejuie|y ‘|

ejhwio4 Buipund a|buig sieap Aleg pasodoud o3 Huirow jo joeduw jenusiod

:om] xipuaddy




29

¥85'63- 6.0'2813 082°1913 €99°16L3 S'vp Sy G'/€ 0S looyog Arewilid yeQ aky
G06'L3- 8G/'€813 8G/'€8LF €99°1613 6% 6t of 0S looyog Aleuwilld ayjiyieyioy
LBL' VI 0v0'L63 210783 1£8'G63 Sz Sve T ¥4 Aewid Bulumoig peqoy
16L 73 0v0'163 265713 1£8'663 G0z S'02 G/l ¥4 |00yos Asewlid SpisiaAly
629'63- €028 3 128'6/13 €99°'1613 6% 6% eF 0S |ooyos Asewlid Jupay
e L3 005763 - 00S°'v63 1£8'G63 Sve G2 Gz ¥4 looyds Arewid Aepp swilbjid
03 867'c0L3 867'c0LF 867'€01L3 Iz /2 12 1z S|liH J8)ed
16L'v3 070163 #6€°/83F 1£8'G63 G'ee Gz gLz 74 Alewd Yied weyxdsd
9/6°0LF 616°2023 L¥2'9023 S67'8123 GS GS zs /S Alewid ynwisplos Jano
L8L Y3 0v0°'L63 710°063 1£8'G63 S'ee gee G'ee (74 Atewd Aepeled [eeyolp
619'03F AR ZAK] v1.22L3 6EL'LELF ey 62 Gz G2 looyog Asewiid 3sinypuhy
¥85°63- 6.0°28L3 GeZ'6Y L3 €99°1613 ov oy L€ 0S [ooyog Arewid yuomAay
GELYF 7657613 765’7613 62£'6613 zs Zs G'8Y 25 Alewnd upsny uyor
75163 9.1'8¥ L3 9/1°8713 0€e'eSL3 8¢ 8¢ ov or looyag Asewiid suuoq uyor
03 1£8°G63 986863 1£8'G63 g'Ge GG 69z et [ooyos Asewid ajepAA|
03 S00°G8L3 £/1'8613 G00'S8L3 6t 89 8¢ 8¢ looyog Aleulld uoyep|
03 1£8'G63 - 092'G63 1£8'G63 et (54 Y4 G2 looyog Alewlid JegeH
1£0°23 76.'€63 1£8°'G6F 1£8'G63 Gz (¥4 G'ee [ looyog Aleuwlld sbueis
785'63- 6.0°Z813 068'8913 £99°1613 ¥ Ly G'8¢ 0S |ooyog Adellld Usals) 8009
¥85'63 602813 89€°CLL3 €99°L6L3 T2 G St 0S looyog Alelllid ydupoos
686'G3- 7/9'G8L3 ¥719'6813 991613 S'6¥ G'6h G'op 0S looyog Aleuwlld 181s8ono|9
0S.°GF 8vZ'6013 809'9.3 866'7LL3 0Z 0z 0z i3 (uonepunod) Arewid sieli
78563 6202813 906'0/L1L3F €99°16L3 Sor Sy L 0S |0OYOS JOIUNF 8MOT BUIBAT
86173 189'763 ore' 183 G99'663 Gz Sz vl 9z Alewid siAueln ysibug
78563 6.0°2813 GLOZLLI €99°1613 g8y 68y 8¢ 0S Alewd |4 [suusy| BoQ
SL8'vF 910°L63 186083 L£8'G63 Gz 4 8l (4 [00ydS Alewlld piomel
03 1£8'663 - 065'66F 1€8'GH3F oz oz 9¢ (574 looyog Adewild uoydwel)
18G'%3F v12' 163 v12°163 LE8'GBF ¥z vZ G'ez Sz [00UIS [N SA0IS) Jaquio
03 1£8'G63 ZLe'vLL3 1£8'G63 0g 0¢ 0¢ Gz looyog Alewlld Binogqo
1873 0¥0°L63 £09'883 1£8'G63 S've Sz G002 Gz Alewiid ueuwueyg epoleyD
26923 6E1'C63 6£1'c63 1£8°G63 54 Y4 €T Y4 |ooyag suaxdIg seleyd
Qouataig sjuswabuelie :o_ﬁa_.omtwn 0l 6002 6002 6002 ol |[ooyos jo aweN
Jeuonisues uo paseq -600Z sooe|d uwniny Jawwng Bundg -600Z papuny
Jayje Junowy Buipuny Buipuny 314 314 314 sadeld 314
44SA3 [enjoy lenjoy [enjoy




30

00L°€€C3F 89125893 129'8%9°93 898'G80°L3 g18/1 G16LL 9c9l 628l s[ejol
L06'CF 0£6'1L63 - 026°1L63 1£8°G63 ve ve ve T4 [ooyog Aleuwid AJOJOIA
6. %3 070°163 v26'783 1£8°G63 22 ZC gze ¥4 [0oyog Alewlld pussumo |
03 1£8°G63 1£8'C63F 1£8°C63 (¥4 Gz ¥4 Y4 looyog Alewlid abplg Jomo |
03 62£'6613 ¥/8'0123 6256613 €S 86 S FZS [ooydg sjueju| asenbg Aeling
03 8667113 - 800°2213 8667113 Gee gee GZE 0 Y [espayie] sablioen1g
LVE'CF ¥87'263 ¥87 263 1£8°G63 (¥4 ¥4 74 ¥4 looyog Atewid 30 s|ned 1S
LEe L3 00S 763 005763 1£8°C63F S¥ve Sve 6z Gz [00YDG 1ULgeD BOSAOUEIS 1S
03 1£8°G63 1€8°663 1£8'C63 (¥4 Gz (¥4 Gz 3D YlomepA sisled 1S
G6STF- 0.0°/63 0/0°263 G99'663 Y4 Gz 9z 9z Kiewnd Oy sydesorig
066°L3- G/9°/63 G/9°/63 G99'663 g6z G'sz GGz 9z Aewid Oy s,ydesoris
10023 166°CLL3 1662113 866'7L1L3 G'62 G'6¢ G'6¢ 0g oY (ai7L0) sydssoris
16LV3 00163 L1683 1£8'G63 %4 ¥44 Z1 ¥4 Arewiid DY (699¢) suyor i
LBL V3 00163 - 29v'e83 1£8'G63 4 g€z g8l Y4 DY Jealg) sy} sewer i
03 G99'663 G99°'663 G99'663 9z 9z 9z 9z Klewld Oy sioueld i
80v'¥3- 161°€83 687083 591883 G0 G0z 4 €z Arewid oljoyied sAuoyjuy 1S
03 0€€eSL3 296'8513 0€€'eS1L3 Sy Sy Gy or Alewid led 3emyinog
0S.'S3 8¥Z'6013 LEL'P0LF 8667113 1z 1z 8z 0¢ looyog Asewlid SplalsSmous
aoualapig wucwEmm:m._._m :O__—Na_o_tﬂn oL 6002 6002 6002 oL [ooyDds JO sWeN
jeuonyisuels) uo paseq -600Z sooejd uwnny Jawwng Bundg -600Z papuni
laye Junowy Buipung Buipung 314 EIE 314 seoejd 31 4
d44sA3 [enjoy [enjoy |enjoy




31

el Aeq uopuoT pue anua) uswdojeaa( jidnd ‘ploysaly} ‘sjuswa)els ‘uonealdsp |e1oos Joy Buipuny Sapnjoxa siy) ;810N

3 S|elo |
8/6°001L3 889'880°c3 £20°/76'C3 | 999'681°C3F %% S6¢ Sov Gew
266'223- 1G8'9ET 3 671 '6VEF £v8'6513 G'GS ¥ [ 09 aA0ID By
118'83F LGL'ELLT LGL'CLL3 820'22.3 66 6 66 0oL UUMAD |[BN
L7623 6/8°9G553 9167053 £62°9853 19 69 G0/ 08 POOAA Yoiming
03 106'7953 1067953 L06 7953 G'L8 ] GG/ G/ Jpeuleg uuy
G69'6£3- 906'71.983 9067183 L09'¥S83 LLL 0l G'gLL 0zl Rep si01uny
aouasayq | syuswabuelre | uonedionied [ 01-6002 6002 6002 6002 01-6002 |jooyas jo aweN
|euonisueli} ~uo paseq saoe|d uwniny Jpowwng Bundg papuny
Jaye junowy m:mu..:.:u_ Buipung 314 jenjoy 314 314 sooejd
44SA3 [enjoy jenjoy 314
uonedidied jo S|9A9] JuaInd Bulwnsse sjooydg AlasinN paulejuley uo 44SAJ jo yoedwi [enuajod :om] a|qe]

"S|00Y0S J0} @8jueiens) Buipunyg wnwiulp ay) Jo 1oedwi 8y} JUNCIdE OJUl 8)e} Jou op sainbly asay |

"wg)sAs Jualno
ay1 ybnoiyl soop U se wsalsAs mau ay] ybnoayl Buipun) swes sy} aAleoal pjnom saoe|d s)i [|e pajlll 1Byl |[00YDs B ‘JansmoH “44SA3 pasodoud ay)
Jo uoneondde sy} ybnouyy ss8| SEEYF SAI9081 PINOM [00YDS B JBU) SUBSW £8613- 10 ainbly B 0g “paljdde usaq sey uonosjoid |euopisuel) Jaje ‘sws)sAs
Buipun} mau pssodoid pue jusuno syl ybnoay) 10eiie pinom uoisiaoid jo wisped siyl Buipuny syl usamiaq aousialip ayl smoys (jquid) g uwnjo)

‘uonoslold [euojisuel) INoYIM ‘44S A3 8yl ybnouy joeiiie pjnom uoisiaoid jo useped siyj Buipuny ay) smoys (an|q sjed) 2 uwnjo)
‘Buipuny aoejd jo wa)sAs uasaid ay] ybnouy) 10e4j1e pjnom uoisiacid jo uianed siyl Buipuny syl smouys (moj|eh) g uwnjo)
'0L/6002 Ul pepuny seoe|d

314 JO Jaquinu 8y} Uey} 8Jow JO) papun} [00Yyds ou pue ‘L L-0L0Z O 0L-600Z wodl %G uey) aiow Buiso| Bupses ou jo sjuswsbuelse |euonisuel] -
“Inoy ue ¢4°'93 Jo ajel ay) 1e Buipuny -

"yoes sinoy G| Jo seoejd yed om] Jo ‘sinoy Qg sjenba (Buipuny Jo Jun jusiing ay}) eoe|d Jusjeainbe swi [N} suQ -

{600z uwnine pue Jawwns ‘Bulds) swis) 881y} 1se| 8y} ul se saoe|d Jo dn aye} swes sy} yum ‘Buipuny soejd ueuy) Jayjes Buipuny uoljedidied -
:suondwnsse Buimoj|o} ay} uo paseq 44SA3 ey} Bunusws|dwi Jo sjooyds Auasinu paulejuiew uo joedw| sy} s|epow om| s|gqe|

s|jooyoag AiasinN paulejuie|y 'z




32

1SV 13 199°€23 9193 € LG0EC3 0LC'6L3 9 oL Ll |ooyag Jolunp suA3|ly
125'63 §9/°2v3 £18'C3 vl 2686€3 AZARK ¥ Ll Sl AasinN Alunwiwon suonen IV
vLS V3 6v8°LL3 Ly8°L3 6 200913 GEE'ELI g1 6 0 AiesinN AeQ sdalSg
ereoL3 GlLL'8Y3 899°C3 el L709v3 2.e'8€3 ve 6l (44
At a1uan) sjualed ¥ ualpiyD 22eld IS|
. Buipunyu | (joam
! | (3)unowe oneaudap 1ad (Moam
(3) 44SA3 jenuue |e1oos sinoy | Jod sinoy
ybnoyy Buipuny o} a|qibie G1) G'ZL) 6002 6002 8002
(3) Buipuny uoneaudap uaIpjiyo Bujpuny Buipuny | sowwng | Buudg | uwniny
asualayIq =301 |eroog joequnN | [ej0L [ejoL uaJpiiyd | uaIppyD | uIpIYD Buipeg jo awenN

uonedioied jJo s|aAs] Jualind Buiwnsse sbuilleg paulejuiep-uoN uo J4SAJ jo joeduwi jepusjod 994yl djqe]l

‘pouad 8y} Jeno puads |enjoe

ay) woJj salieA a|gel siy} Ul Ino 1s Buipuny B0} 8y} uosesal sy} Jo4 "Pasojo Ajjusnbasgns sAey Jng uonelapisuod Jepun pouad sy} ul Buipuny paAisdal
aney oym sbuimas saey Se ‘|9poW SIY} WoJ) papn|oxa usaq aAeY g0z Bulds ul Buipuny 3334 Buiniedal jou aiem oym sbuiies jey) sjou eses|d

‘suondwnsse asay] Jo siseq 8y} uo ‘44SA3 pasodoid sy} jo uoieoldde ayy ybnouyl siow Geez3F Bunies e jey) sueaw GE623 10 saunbiy e 0g "swieisAs
Buipun} meu pasodoid pue yuaund ay) ybnoliy) Joeiie pjnom uoisiroid jo uieped siyy Buipuny sy} usamiaq aouaisyip syl smoys (juid) g uwnjoD

‘Buipuny

uoneaudap [eos snid yeem Jad sinoy G| Jo} 44SAT 8y} ybnouy} 1oeie pjnom uoisiaoid jo useped siyy Buipuny ay) smoys (en|q ejed) g uwnjo)

“yoom Jad sinoy G'Z| Jo} Buipuny jo walsAs jussaid ay) ybnouyl 1oe1)E pjnom uoisiaoid jo uisped siy) Buipuny sy} smoys (mojjeA) g uwnjo)

"'600z Buuds ul Bumes yoes ul uaipjyo o|qibie

10 Jagwinu uo paseq ‘seale pabejueapesip }sow %Gz au} ul Buial ualpjiyo Joj Jnoy ue dgg jo Buipun) uoneAldsp [eloos [euonippe Bulpinold -
Inoy ue ¢7°¢3 Jo ajel ayy Je Buipung -
'sinoy G| 0} Jussald je se Jnoy ue g-g| woyj Buipuny Bulpuaixy -

(6002 Jowwns pue g0z Bunds

‘900z uwnne) a)e|dwoo a1e SPJodal YdIYM 10} SWIs) 881y} }se| 8y} ul se saoejd Jo dn aye) swes ay} ypm ‘Buipuny uonedidiped yym Buinunuo)d -

:suondwnsse Buimo||o} 8y} uo paseq 44SAT oyl Bunuswsajdwi jo sbuiies paulejuiew-uou uo joeduwl ay) s|epow 8aly] s|jgel

sBunjag pauilejuiely -uon -z




33

Gl vE3 0659613 25023 0l 86Sv61L3 | SGLL'2OL3 £6 96 g8 [00YyoS sjueju|
: a puy usueblispury abajjoD uoming
GGE'R3 2cg'le3 297°'C3 cl 09¢5E3 197'623 9l 9l 8l AissinN spul 8Anesl)
120°c3 9/0'013 0LY3 Z 999613 GG0CL3 oL 9 9 AesinN AeQ xog inojoD
LOg L3 21193 0L¥3 Z 10/G3 96/ '3 & € ¢ AsesinN Aeq peoy AgloD
Sy LL3 LBZ'VSF £/8C3 7l 8L¥LS3 G RAL 6l e (015 [ooyog
e e uensuy) uspuadspu) akjosAiyd
67873 210923 9193 € LOvSe3 891°L23 Ll L ¥l
: dnolibAe|d Hossajuop 891 AusyD
6£8'63F 1G6'GSF 9193 g GEeas3 ZLLov3 6¢ e 74 9SNoH Jepad
6063 - 9L0'6€3 Q8¥'cF Ll 8265¢3 109'623 Ll 8l Gl dnous) |00yog-aid peswsised
Pr8°LL3 - 169°9G3 €/8'23 7l [ LAAR €G3 773 e 9¢ 9¢ |aJjua)
Sai siea A AjJeg anolo [[emuaquien)
20S°23 £8.'1¢3 25023 ol RWAAN 9/2°123 6l ¥l €l Alasinu Ajpenng
S0Z'63 - 688'LYI 89923 & L22ee3 ¥89°¢E3 ¥l Gl lC Asspuowueg |00ydS-8.1d spng
€GL'L3 118'823 1283 14 066.€3 8G9°LEF 9c 74! oL [ooyos-8id spnd
19163 61873 9e¥'L3 JA £8E9¥3 259'8c3 8¢ [ o]
aienbg pJieqe | 1y suozuoH ybug
8913 028've3 1G2'C3 L £0G62e3 ocL'le3 Ll gl 9l AsesinN Aeq oosog
195'G3 9/£°2€3 G0c3 L LL12EF 608'923 L1 ¥l o] 8snoH
o i s,ua.piyn 1Iossajuo swossolg
£00°23 192°1€3 25023 oL 60,623 8G.'7e3 ¥l €l Gl
5 : aqjuen sualpiyD asnoy sdoysig
1ZeLL3 - B0V Y3 Y0L¥3 0c S0EEY3 880°9¢3 [ 4 6l
i |[o0yog-ald ¥ AlesinN ysng uj-pag
ZrLL3 119'GE3 9y L3 VA RTA7 GEG'RT3 61l Ll cl
SR AlasinN Alunwwon Aespuouwiiag
1176'93 76G'9EF 920°L3 S 8¢66¢ 109'623 6l 9l Sl AissinN Aeq uspusjjeg
ZL0'23 V68'VEF 9Ev L3 L 8SYELeT 288123 Ll Ll €l AlssinN anelbjeg
v8Z'L3 Z67'GET Zv9'L3 8 068€E3 802823 8l Ll 6l anua) sies A Ape3 Aingss|Ay
8G9'03F 76.L'€€3 €213 9 €952e3 9¢1°123 9l vl 9l dnoibAe|d py Howy
P Buipuny u jeam
: : (3) unowe oneaudsp Jad (jeam
(3) 44sA3 |enuue |e1oos sinoy Jad sunoy
- ybnouyy Buipuny o} 3|q1b1|d GL) gZL) 6002 6002 8002
3) Buipunj uonealdap uaIpiys Buipuny Buipuny Jowwng | Buudg uwnny
2duaiagig |ejol |elnos JO JaquinN [ejol jejol UJp[iyd | ualpiiyy | uaJpiiyd Buipeg jo sweN




34

Z56'7SF

G09'63 9193 e 9¢€6ES3 176773 12 Gc Ve AsasinN uossajuo siebuld s
0€Z'93 L83 Lv8'13 6 162923 ¥16°123 9l ol Ll AiasinN Aeq suiody s
ZSv'L3 6617°9€3 Zro'L3 8 1G8YE3 1¥0'623 L gl vl KiasinN Aeq |endsoH abajj00 sbury
£20'73 680013 0LY3 e 6,963 990°83 0 S 6 [00yoG-aid ej|elepuly
G9S'Z3 v82'LL3 1283 ¥ €9%013 61293 € 14 8 spiyiedng uonepunod enysor

095'83 0lLE6YI 0Lv3 Z 0068V3 0S.2°0v3 Zl éc 9¢
s Jjooyog Alojeiedald s,us|y sewer
GEZ'83 P0'SEF €18°C3 4% ARA 608923 0¢ Gl 0L AiesinN Aeq
099°'L3 ~ 656'63 03 0 65663 66283 S S v AsesinN Aidwing AidwnH
#G9°0S3 Z2l9'1623 29v'T3 Zl 0516823 | 8S6'0¥C3 o9gl 9¢L 9el 100Y0g [IIH suleH
LEV 63 ..E..N, ow_.m €8¢ €3 9l 1269€3 €11°0e3 61l Ll 9l fibainiAnies SR AU
0L£'83 Z67'Se3 €18°C3 vl 619¢e3 281°123 9l Sl Gl dnoibAeld suid jieH

€28°023 9GL°LLL3 oev' L3 L 02e9l L3 ££6'063 €9 8 €5
: ik dnoubAe|d 1J0SSa1UO UOO JBH
£52'83 - 061'8V3 G0Z3 L GQZ8Y3 1€2°0v3 [5r4 ve ¥4 AsssinN Ajlunwwo) sjooquing
Z2Lo'e3 eV6°CL3 92¢0°L3 S L16LL3 LE€6'63 € 9 8 KiasinN sBuijso
ZeT'S3 802123 oer'L3 VA 211223 9/6'813 Gl 8 6 ajusd ualpiiyy urejuno
19Z°63 287253 9193 € 998163 L2T'eV3 8¢ €c 4 fiesinN Aeq Losseluop sdais 18J4
€16'63F Gl .m&m. £18'C3 14 eveev3 20z'se3 8l Ll Ge 8hy
: S Weyyo9d || Se21AI8S 2Jeap|iy) |99x3
€SC V3 1ev'Ce3 9193 € 128LZ3 ¥8L'8L3 Gl Gl 0 pajiwIT | s8JIAIRS Jedp|Iy] [29X3
00L'G3 - vev'ec3 9eY' L3 Vi 886123 y2e'8L3 Zl 6 0l AsasinN pjUeql3
9/8°¢l3 162793 ¥769°€3 3l 160193 G16'093 L€ 6¢ 9c p11 AlesinN Aeq apiseDs ueyds|g
008'0L3 Lev' 053 €823 14 8GG/¥3 LE9'6ET ve 4 Le dnoig Ae|q uoseAq
G8O'LL3 £00°993 1283 14 2816993 8LE V53 Le 0¢g Le |ooyag-aid abe||iA yaming
Y9€'v3  681'923 03 0 G81923 L2g‘Le3 Sl 6 gl AjosunN yoiming
206'S3 06E7EF S0Z3 L G8LvEF 8817'823 cc gl el dnoibAeld
L |00UDS-2.id HOSSSJUO YyaIming

Buipunj u (jeam
et (3) unowe | oneaudap Jad (3eeam
(3) 44SA3 [enuue [e1o0s sinoy | sad sinoy
ybnoayy Buipuny 1o} 9qibije Gl) g'zL) 6002 6002 8002
(3) Buipuny uoneaudap uaipyo Buipuny Buipuny Jowwng | Buudg | uwniny

aJuaiaia [ejol |eloosg J0 JsquinN jejol 1ejoL USIpiyd | ualipiyy | uaapjiyd Bumesg jo aweN




35

¥£6'83 992073 89923 el 86S.€3 ZeE1E3 0c 9l Ll (Uoinyd uediBuy smaipuy
: 1S UUAN) [00YDS-2id sawer i
160'€3 6617613 9193 o €88v L3 2or'CL3 S 6 L AlesinN
. aleoAe( 1JOSSBUO 1SET UINOS
L0G'.3 1G1'ee3 16223 Ll 00S1LE3 052'923 0c Gl 6 aljus) sjusied
S : puy ualp|iyD Aespuowiag Uyinos
€293 SLTeiees 920°L3 S S8LYES 88177'823 6l 9l €l AsssInN JE)S Jews
€183 166°L23 920°'L3 S GZ6023 e’ LL3 2 9 a9l sbBemA|eys
ceV'ed L8V9L3 1283 12 999613 GG0'eL3 0L 9 9 KiesinN Aeq Aunseq@woleys
15603 957°0€3 162'C3 Ll 661823 667'€23 ol vl 9l dno.bAe|d weybuniooy
€9123 6€L€ET L¥8°L3 6 c68le3 9.5'9¢3 vl 9l Gl AsasinN
e Req Aunwwo) weybuooy
9e2'e3 €9€°21L3 0L¥3 Z €56913 LZLVL3 0l S 6 dnoibhe|d soeysheld
¥90'63 zSL'sY3 Ly8'L3 6 S0EEYI | 880°9e3 9z 9l 6l AissinN Ae@ oAy weyyoed
9Lv'93 LIY'GET 9193 e L08YEF 100623 8l 9l Gl dno.bAe|d 3.1 ¥eO
19223 6SYCLI 1283 2 8c91 13 86963 0l 9 0 AiesinN Aeq MOIN
LGS'v3 860'613 Zr9'L3 8 9Sv.LL3 LYS'vL3 gl Ll 0 KissInN 10BN
Zv9'G3 ¥28'2e3 S0c3 L 6192¢3 28L'LT3 Ll 4" Gl AasinN sAlleN
190°013 E'653 G0c3 L 61653 €82'673 Ge 9¢ ac [o0yoS-2ld uelsuyp pesag pleisniy
09673 692623 03 0 G9.623 S08've3 9l Zl vl psjwi spield
: i a|epuaals) AlssinpN 9S005) JaUIoN
66093 €ov'LET 920°L3 S LEVOEF ¥9€°6Z3 Gl el Gl
: p17 (pueidn) AsasinN 9s009) JoYloN
L¥S'93 - €TL'EET LeZ'L3 9 2681€3 9/5'923 9L 14 Sl KiasinN 8s009) JaUylo
167'€3 €58'GL3 920'L3 S L28VL3 96e°C1L3 9 L 8 |00yosaid @ AJasINN pulwoibe
6£6°0L3 12'€S3 2ov'e3 Zl 668053 Z8€'tr3 ¥Z L2 12 KizsinN 1nogepunoy dibepy
68583 €L2' L3 25023 ol LZc6e3 789'2€3 [ 0¢ vl AsasinN
e AusiaAlun Yuequinog uopuoT
¥8¢'L3 €9£°0€3 899°C3 €l G69.¢3 6.0'cC3 el ¥l cl SJBUUIM 2T
TEeromte puipunj u (qeam
: i (3) junowe | oneaudsp Jad (eam
(3) 44sA3 |enuue |e1oos sinoy 1ad sinoy
-~ ybnoayy Buipunj | 104 9jqibije L) Sz 6002 6002 8002
(3 - Buipuny uoneaudap uaipjiyo Buipuny Buipuny Jowwng | Buudsg uwnny
adualagig [ejof [eloog 30 JequinN jejolL jejol UaIppiyy | uaip|iyy | uaipjiyd Bumeg jo sweN




36

To: All Directors of Children’s Services
Local Authorities (England)

CC: Head of Early Years
CC: Head of School Funding
10 December 2009

Early Years Single Funding Formula

| am writing to let you know that Dawn Primarolo, Minister for Children, Young
People and Families, has taken the decision to postpone implementation of
the Early Years Single Funding Formula by one year. A written ministerial
statement was laid in Parliament to that effect today (attached).

The Early Years Single Funding Formula (EYSFF) was intended to be
implemented in every Local Authority from April 2010 and we know local
authorities have been working hard to meet this challenging deadline.

However, we also know that many providers, parents and local authorities
themselves have been concerned about the potential disruption to the early
years sector that an under-developed formula could cause. The Minister has
therefore decided that local authorities will not be required to implement their
EYSFF until April 2011. However, the Department will invite those local
authorities that believe they will be ready to implement the EYSFF from April
2010 to continue as planned and to join a new wave of pathfinders for 2010-
11.

By taking this approach, we hope to build on the experience of the nine pilot
local authorities that implemented their formulae in April of this year and,
working with them and the new wave of pathfinders, gather further learning
and good practice which can be used to support the remaining local
authorities to implement their formulae successfully in April 2011.

We will write again next week in order to set out the steps to be taken by
those LAs which may wish to apply to become pathfinders. In the meantime,
please contact your Government Office Early Years team in the first instance
if you have any questions.

We recognise that this may be frustrating to those of you that have worked
hard to implement the EYSFF within a challenging timescale and in full
partnership with providers. However, the work you have all undertaken so far
will be necessary for taking the process into the next year. Postponing
implementation will allow more time to reflect on any aspects of the formula
that have caused concern and ensure that the final version supports the
provision required to meet the needs of the children in your area and meets
the needs of all your providers.

We look forward to working with you further over the next year to ensure the
successful implementation of the EYSFF.



With best wishes

Yours sincerely,

o

ﬁ.ﬂ""-

Ann Gross

Director

Early Years, Extended Services and
SEN Group

DCSF

37

Stephen Kingdom
Head of School Funding Unit
DCSF



38

Written Ministerial Statement
‘Early Years Funding’

This government has transformed the provision of early years education
and childcare in this country, increasing investment sevenfold since
1997 and creating a universal free offer for three and four year olds.

As a result there is now nearly universal take-up of the 12%2 hours of free
early learning and childcare available to three and four year olds, and we
remain on course to extend the provision to 15 hours per week from
September 2010. The commitment and endeavour of early years
providers across the country have been crucial to this success.

In 2007 we announced plans to introduce a single local Early Years
Single Funding Formula (EYSFF).

This aims to provide greater consistency and transparency in local
decision-making concerning the funding of the free entitlement for 3 and
4 year olds.

The necessary paving legislation for the EYSFF was included in the
Apprenticeships, Skills, Children and Learning Act 2009, which has
recently completed its passage through Parliament. The introduction of
the EYSFF was welcomed by members on all sides of both Houses.

Our intention has been that every local authority should implement the
EYSFF from April 2010. In anticipation of this many local authorities
have been working hard to prepare for this and have engaged positively
with local providers.

However, during the summer it became clear that a significant number
of local authorities were experiencing difficulty in developing their
EYSFF. More recently, parents and providers, from both the maintained
and the PVI sectors, have expressed concerns about the potential
adverse impact on provision if the EYSFF is introduced now.

In response to these concerns the department acted quickly to survey
all local authorities, to establish how much progress they had made.
This was completed towards the end of November and found
considerable variation in terms of their readiness.

The data and information we have collected now suggests that less than
a third of local authorities will be in a secure position to implement their
EYSFF from April 2010. While it is difficult to generalise about the
underlying reasons it seems clear that some local authorities have
experienced serious difficulties in obtaining accurate data from their
providers, while others have simply found the task extremely
challenging.

| have therefore decided to postpone the formal implementation date for
the EYSFF by one year until April 2011.



39

I have asked my officials to invite all local authorities that are confident
they are ready to implement their new formulae in April 2010 and who
wish to do so to continue as planned. These local authorities will be able
to apply to join a pathfinder programme, which currently involves 9 local
authorities but which we will now expand.

This expansion will increase the capacity of the pathfinder programme
to develop practice from which other local authorities can learn.

The government remains strongly committed to the introduction of the
EYSFF in all areas from April 2011. We believe that it is only through the
effective implementation of the EYSFF that all providers across the
sector can have confidence in local decisions about funding. This
twelve month delay should provide sufficient time for concerns to be
addressed, without incurring a risk of drift. It will also allow time for
more dedicated support to be offered to those local authorities that need
it in order to complete the development of their formula.



* Agenda ltem 8

Information Requested by Children’s Scrutiny — January 2010

At the November meeting of Children’s Scrutiny officers were requested to:
e provide statistics on the proportionate numbers of children in the different EY
provider settings across the borough

The Children’s Services Department holds a register of all providers in the borough and
their current vacancies. It should be noted that this is a snapshot as at January 2010. The
situation is constantly changing as families move, or parents change their childcare
arrangements and as parents return to work after their maternity breaks. The register only
includes those settings that have been approved by Ofsted. The statistics below do not
include childminders.

Settings are registered such that they have a maximum number of children of any
particular age. This means that a vacancy for a 3 or 4 year old place cannot necessarily
be converted into a place for a child below the age of 3. The reason for this is that there
are strict rules around the adult/child ratios in each of these age groups.

The figures do not include information about children aged 3 or 4 who are in school
nursery classes where the ratios are different.

In addition to providing a breakdown for the type of provider | have also included some
geographical information.

Available | Under1 | 2 Year ?(‘éi’r: Total
Places Year Oid Vacancies
Old
Bermondsey 387 12 27 26 65
Borough 392 1 19 37 57
Camberwell 505 2 14 17 33
Dulwich 358 0 11 24 35
East Dulwich 182 0 22 22 44
Herne Hill 66 0 2 3 5
Kennington 118 0 0 5 5
Nunhead 243 4 3 4 11
Peckham 680 18 57 35 110
Peckham Rye 143 0 2 4 6
Rotherhithe 190 1 3 5 9
Walworth 442 15 14 22 51
Total 3706 53 174 204 431
Available | Under1 | 2 Year ?{‘é‘;rrs Total
Places Year Oid Vacancies
Old
Community 352 3 5 28 36
Health
Authority 171 0 0 0 0
Independent 52 0 0 0 0
Local
Authority 525 0 0 0 0
Private 2099 44 150 151 345
Voluntary 507 6 19 25 50
Total 3706 53 174 204 431
Mike Smith

Assistant Director, 0-5 Services and Community
8™ January 2010



Agenda ltem 9

41

Committee

Overview and Scrutiny
Committee

Date

5" May 2009

Classification

Unrestricted

Report
No.

Agenda Item
No.

Report of:

Lutfur Ali,
Assistant Chief Executive

Originating Officer(s):

Ashraf Ali
Scrutiny & Equalities

Title:

Parental Engagement in Secondary Education:
Report of the Scrutiny Working Group

Ward(s) affected: All

1. Summary

1.1 This report submits the report and recommendations of the Parental Engagement in
Secondary Education Working Group for consideration by the Overview and Scrutiny

Committee.

2. Recommendations

It is recommended that Overview and Scrutiny Committee:

2.1 Endorse the draft report.

2.2  That the Service Head for Scrutiny and Equalities be authorised to agree final report
before submission to Cabinet, after consultation with the Scrutiny Lead for A
Prosperous Communities.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 1972 (AS AMENDED) SECTION 100D

LIST OF “BACKGROUND PAPERS” USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS

REPORT

Background paper

Name and telephone number of and address where open to

inspection




3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

5.1

6.

6.1

42

Background

A Working Group was established in September 2008 to review current policy and
practices and suggest improvements in supporting and encouraging parental
engagement in secondary schools.

The review had six main objectives:

— To consider the role of the Council in assisting schools to improve relationships
with parents and carers

- To review service provision offered to parents by schools and the Council

— To establish a common understanding of the importance that parents/carers
play in influencing the educational achievement of their children

— To find out how parents feel about their relationship with their children’s school
and how this could be further developed

- To find out from secondary schools the level of parental engagement and the
issues that schools face in seeking to engage with parents

- To make appropriate recommendations designed to support Children’s
Services improve responsiveness to the needs of parents /carers in the
borough

The Working Group held two meetings with Council Officers to review the current
parental engagement initiatives. The Working Group also visited four parenting
programmes to ascertain views about the quality of parental engagement provisions.

The report with recommendations is attached at Appendix A.

Once agreed, the Working Group's report and action plan will be submitted to Cabinet
for a response to their recommendations.

Concurrent Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal)

The Council is required by section 21 of the Local Government Act 2000 to have an
Overview and Scrutiny committee and to have executive arrangements that ensure the
committee has specified powers. Consistent with this obligation, Article 6 of the
Council’s Constitution provides that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee shall make
reports and recommendations to the Full Council or the Executive in connection with
the discharge of any functions. The attached report contains recommendations in
relation to Parental Engagement in Secondary Education. It is open to the Overview
and Scrutiny committee to agree the report for presentation to Cabinet.

Comments of the Chief Financial Officer

There are no specific financial implications emanating from this report.

One Tower Hamlets considerations
Recommendations 2 and 6, specifically ask that Children’s Services develops clear
and accessible information and communication networks for parents. The Working

Group was told by BME parents that information given to them is difficult to read and
understand. This has clear relevance for equal opportunity implications.



43

6.2 The report also considers factors that stop parents from attending parental
engagement programmes including: childcare commitments, lack of confidence when
interacting with teachers and feeling intimidated by other parents. These are
significant when considering One Tower Hamlets implications.

7. Risk Management

7.1 There are no direct risk management implications arising from the Working Group’s
report or recommendations.



44

Appendix A

Parental Engagement in Secondary Education

Tower Hamlets Council
May 2009

=B

TOWER HAMLETS



Index

45

Acknowledgements

Chair’s foreword

Recommendations

Introduction

Findings

Conclusions

Page

22



46

Acknowledgements

Working Group Chair:
Councillor Abdul Aziz Sardar

Working Group members:

Councillor Salim Ullah

Councillor Oliur Rahman

Councillor Motin Uz-Zaman

Councillor Abdul Asad

Councillor Azizur Rahman Khan

Shahanara Begum (Co-opted member, Future Women’s Councillor
Programme)

Council Officers

Sarah Gale, Head of Equalities and Parental Engagement

Helen Jenner, Service Head, Early Years Children and Learning
Lorraine Hachou, Joint Head, Extended Servicess

Shibbir Ahmed, Extended Service Cluster Co-ordinator (LAPs 3&4)
Tom Morris, Parent Early Intervention Project Manager

Sudha Solaiman, Parents Advice Worker

Lynn Stone, Parent Information Point (PIP) Co-ordinator

Ayesha Khanam, Parent Information Point Outreach Worker
Denise Hickford, Parents Workshop Facilitator

External Contributors
Pinder Singh, Ocean Maths Project
Patrice Canavan, Headteacher, Oaklands Secondary School

Scrutiny and Equalities

Afazul Hoque, Acting Scrutiny Policy Manager

Ashraf Ali, Scrutiny Policy Officer

Michael Keating, Service Head, Scrutiny and Equalities
Farhana Khan, Tower Hamlets Youth Trainee

Nojmul Hussian, Support Officer, Scrutiny and Equalities



47

Chair’s Foreword

This report of the Parental Engagement in Secondary Education Working
Group highlights the critical role parents play in educating their children and
the way our Children’s Services supports parents to engage more with
schools.

There is extensive research evidence that demonstrates that if parents are
actively involved in supporting their children's learning; their children will do
well at school. The report provides information of a number of visits that
demonstrate how important it is that schools and Children’s Services support
parents in actively participating in their children's education both at school and
at home.

| hope that the report will be widely read and the recommendations acted
upon. Investing time and energy, to work with parents, particularly the hard to
reach, will reap dividends in higher standards of achievement. Families in
Tower Hamlets experience multiple deprivations but through the Council,
schools and the wider community working together to involve parents,
standards of achievement will rise significantly. While we found evidence of
good practice in Tower Hamlets schools, there is a great deal that we can do
to improve this.

| would like to thank everyone who came to give evidence at scrutiny
meetings and gave so generously their time and expertise. | would like to
thank the Equalities and Parental Engagement team for their advice and
support. Finally, | would like to thank members of the Working Group for their
commitment and interest in the project.

Clir Abdul Aziz Sardar
Scrutiny Lead, Prosperous Communities



48

Recommendations

R1

R2

R3

R4

RS

R6

R7

The Working Group recommendations set out the areas requiring
consideration and action by the Council to improve parental engagement
in Secondary education. The recommendations cover three main areas:

— Better access to information
— Support to access services
— Improved consultation with parents

That Children’s Services help to develop the Parent Support
Partner (PSP) role within schools to ensure parents have
access to the information and support they might need to
access services, including parenting programmes.

That Children’s Services develops clear and accessible
information and communication networks for parents through
development of the PSP role, publications and newsletters,
websites, parent forums and rep schemes as well as face to face
meetings.

That Children’s Services in partnership with primary and
secondary schools develops a seamless and effective transition
process from year 6 (primary school) by running transition
information sessions (Parent Information Point) for all Year 7
parents. This should be followed by a structured induction into
year 7 through workshops and short courses enabling parents to
learn more about how secondary schools work and how they can
support their child’s learning.

That Children’s Services supports secondary schools to offer
transition information sessions for parents of children in Y9
(making curriculum choices) and Y11 (making post 16 choices)
and pilots a Choice Advice Service for parents who find it difficult
to engage with the process.

That Children’s Services support schools to ensure that there is a
dedicated area for parents to meet or attend programmes, either
in the school or nearby (eg the Community House shared by
schools in the LEO - Lawdale, Elizabeth Selby and Oaklands -
mini-cluster).

That secondary schools, with the support of Children’s Services,
introduce regular consultation events to obtain parents’ views
and build trust and confidence (Parent Voice), ensuring parents
receive feedback and see results.

That Children’s Services supports schools to develop a
welcoming School with training for front-line staff, both in the



R8

49

office and the classroom, on how to make parents feel
comfortable, particularly when discussing sensitive issues.

That Children’s Services support schools to develop an ongoing
programme of interactive activities and workshops for parents to
learn more about the curriculum, how children are taught

and how they can support their child’s learning, as well as
approaches to parenting teenagers.



50

Introduction

1. The role of parental engagement in childrens’ education is a central
issue in educational policy and research. Improving parental
engagement and family-school partnerships is a fundamental challenge
to strengthen student achievement and reduce educational inequalities.

2. A Working Group was established in September 2008 to review current
policy and practices and suggest improvements in supporting and
encouraging parental engagement in secondary schools. Four
councillors and a co-opted representative made up the membership of
the review including the chair of the Working Group Councillor Abdul
Aziz Sardar, Scrutiny Lead, A Prosperous Community.

3. The scrutiny review topic was identified to help ensure the right support
is provided to parents to help their children reach their full educational
potential.

4. The review had six main objectives:

— To consider the role of the Council in assisting secondary schools to
improve relationships with parents and carers

— To review service provision offered to parents by secondary schools
and the Council

— To establish a common understanding of the importance that
parents/carers play in influencing the educational achievement of their
children

— Tofind out how parents feel about their relationship with their children’s
secondary school and how this could be further developed

— Tofind out from secondary schools the level of parental engagement
and the issues that schools face in seeking to engage with parents

— To make appropriate recommendations designed to support Children’s
Services improve responsiveness to the needs of parents /carers in the
borough

5. The following timetable for review work was agreed:

Introductory Meeting (October 2008)
— To agree scoping document
— Review the Family Support and Parental Engagement Strategy
— Introduction to current Parental Engagement Initiatives in
secondary schools

Meeting to consider current parental engagement initiatives in

Secondary Schools (November 2008)
— In-depth review of parental engagement initiatives

10



51

Focus group with parents (January 2009)
— Focus group with parents of children attending Oaklands
Secondary, Lawdale and Elizabeth Selby Primary Schools — to
hear views about quality of parental engagement

School Visit —Stepney Green School (January 2009)
— Review Ocean Maths Project and its work building relationships
with local residents and improving parents’ understanding of
work children are doing in Schools

Visit to the Pupil Referral Unit (PRU) (February 2009)

— Participating in the Strengthening Families Strengthening
Communities Parenting Programme at PRU and talking to
parents about the impact of the programme in building
relationships between parents and children

Visit to the Annual Parents Matter Conference (March 2009)
— The Working Group was invited to attend the Annual Parents
Matter Conference and spoke to parents about ways to improve
parental engagement.

Final Meeting (March 2009)
— Consider draft recommendations

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee will consider the Working
Group’s report and its recommendations before submission to Cabinet.

11



52

Findings

Background

National Legislation

7.

The government has highlighted the importance of parents and
parenting in recent legislation. The Childcare Act 2006 places a duty on
local authorities to broaden the scope of information provided to ensure
that parents of children and young people up to their twentieth birthday
can obtain the full range of information they need to fulfil their parenting
role. It also places a requirement on local authorities to deliver
information services which are accessible to all parents, particularly
those who might otherwise have difficulty in accessing the information
they need.

Since the launch of the Every Child Matters: Change for Children
Programme1, the significance of parenting in improving child outcomes
has become increasingly central to policy formation on family issues.
Government Guidance issued in October 2006 by the Department for
Children, Schools and Families (DCSF) asks local authorities to
develop a strategic and joined-up approach to the design and delivery
of a continuation of parenting support services, ideally through a
parenting support strategy that informs the Children and Young
People’s Plan and takes account of parents’ views. The DCSF says
that:

‘Families are in most cases the key determinant of
positive outcomes for their children, and good parenting
is a major factor in improving children and young people’s
life chances.’

Local Overview

9.

10.

April 1999 saw the first scrutiny review in Tower Hamlets that
examined parental involvement in schools. The review carried out by
the Education and Youth Scrutiny Panel sought to review work to
increase involvement of parents in their children’s learning and review
barriers to greater involvement.

The scrutiny process involved hearing presentations and receiving
information from voluntary and statutory organisations. Furthermore
visits were made to a number of family learning sessions and focus
groups were held with parents at four open meetings.

! Every Child Matters: Change for Children reform aims to improve and integrate children's services,
promote early intervention, provide strong leadership and bring together different professionals in multi-
disciplinary teams in order achieve positive outcomes for children and young people and their families.

12



11.

12.

53

Key findings from the 1999 review suggested that good practice
already existed, with considerable work already happening locally.
Moreover, it was clear that there is no one model approach to parental
involvement and that different needs of different parents and
communities have to be recognised. Furthermore, findings made
apparent the enthusiasm of the Bangladeshi community to get
involved. Nonetheless, there was still a lot of work needed to increase
involvement.

The 2008/09 Working Group spent considerable time considering the
findings of the report by the Education and Youth Scrutiny Panel. The
1999 report was used to help draft the scoping document, particularly
the methods to obtain evidence. The current Members of the Working
Group decided early to carry out visits to parenting programmes as
was the case in the earlier review. It was argued that the best way to
understand barriers to parental engagement was to talk with parents
themselves.

Family Support and Parental Engagement Strategy 2007/08

13.

14.

During the development of the draft scope, the Equalities and Parental
Engagement team introduced the Family Support and Parental
Engagement Strategy 2007/08, which sets out the Council’s vision on
the way better engagement will be achieved. This strategy states that:

‘The strategy for family support and parental engagement is
designed to support the borough’s vision by ensuring that
parents and families have access to the support that they
need, when they need it, so that children can benefit from
confident, positive parenting from birth through to teenage
years'.

A key component of the 2007/08 strategy is the Tower Hamlets
Parents’ Charter which sets out shared principles and beliefs for key
providers. These include ensuring that parents receive high quality
service, clear and comprehensive information about services and how
to access them, making sure that parents are consulted about existing
services and involved in the planning of new initiatives.

Literature Review

15.

The belief that parental involvement has a positive effect on students’
academic achievement is intuitively appealing to policy makers,
teachers, parents and students alike. However this belief has a firm
foundation both in the literature concerning parental involvement and in
the school improvement research base. The empirical evidence shows
that parental involvement is one of the key factors in securing higher

13



16.

17.

18.

19.

54

student achievement and sustained school performance (Harris and
Chrispeels 20062).

It would appear that involving parents in schooling leads to more
engagement in teaching and learning processes. The importance of
parents’ educational attitudes and behaviours on children’s educational
attainment has also been well documented, especially in
developmental psychology literature. This evidence shows that
different elements of parents’ ‘educational attitudes and behaviours,
such as the provision of a cognitively stimulating home environment,
parental involvement in children’s activities and parental beliefs and
aspirations, have been identified as having a significant effect on
children’s levels of educational achievement’ (Feinstein et al. 2006:1°).

Parental involvement in learning at home throughout the age range is
much more significant than any factor open to educational influence.
(Sacker et al. 2002%).

Parental aspiration/expectation of their children’s achievements has a
strong impact on results at school, while the effect of supervision of
their work is only marginal (Fan et al. 2001°). Desforges and
Abouchaar (2003°) list involvement initiatives as ‘good’ parenting in the
home, including the provision of a secure and stable environment,
intellectual stimulation, parent-child discussion, good models of
constructive social and educational values and high aspirations relating
to personal fulfilment and good citizenship; contact with schools to
share information; participation in school events; participation in the
work of the school; and participation in school governance’ (Desforge &
Abouchaar, 2003, p.2).

Evidence shows differences relating to economic status carry over into
the area of parental engagement. While parents want the best for their
children, working class parents may not automatically expect certain
outcomes as do middle class parents (National Centre for Social
Research 2004). As Lupton (2006") points out ‘most working class
parents think education is important but they see it as something that
happens in the school, not the home’. Their expectations of social
mobility through education also remain small. It remains the case that
their social class has a powerful impact on subsequent educational
attainment.

% Harris, A. & Chrispeels, J. H. (Eds.). (2006). Improving Schools and Educational Systems: International
Perspectives. London: Routledge

® Feinstein, L. and Sabates, R. (2006). Does Education have an impact on

mothers' educational attitudes and behaviours. Research Brief RCB01-06, DfES.

* Sacker, A., Schoon, . and Bartley, M. (2002). "Social inequality in educational achievement and psychological
adjustment throughout childhood

® Fan, X. and Chen, M. (2001). "Parental Involvement and Students’ Academic Achievement

6 Desforges, C. and Abouchaar, A. (2003). The impact of parental involvement, parental support and family education
on pupil achievement and adjustment

" Lupton, R. (2006). How does place affect education? London, Institute for Public Policy Research.

14



20.

21.

95

Finding from the literature review demonstrate clearly that parental
involvement has a positive influence on students’ academic
achievement. Furthermore findings suggest parental involvement in
children’s activities and parental beliefs and aspirations, have effects
on children’s levels of educational achievement.

The literature review helped to further expand the scope of the review
and to set the context for investigating current programmes and
practices.

Current Programmes and Practices

22.

The Working Group was presented with information about current
initiatives to increase parental engagement at the meeting in November
2008. Including:

- Extended Schools

- Strengthening Families Strengthening Communities Parenting
Programme

- Transition Information Sessions/ Parent Information Point (PIP)

— Passport to Learning and targeted workshops for parents of
year 7 students

- Maths curriculum workshop — Ocean Maths Project

Extended Schools

23.

24.

25.

The Working Group was informed by the Head of Extended Services
that services offered as part of the programme are in response to
demand and delivered through schools and clusters. Programmes are
delivered by teams within Children's Services, other statutory providers
and voluntary, community or private sector organisations.

Extended Schools provide a wide range of services and activities, to
help meet the needs of children and their families. The core parenting
support that families should be able to access through schools include:
information sessions for parents at key transition points, parenting
programmes and family learning sessions to allow children to learn with
their parents.

The Working Group was informed that a varied menu of activities exists
to deliver the Extended Schools programme. These include: academic
activities to boost children’s school performance, homework clubs,
booster and catch up sessions as well as arts, sporting and creative
activities. Programmes are shaped through consultation with children
and young people and by individual school development priorities.

15



56

Strengthening Families Strengthening Communities

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

Information on the Strengthening Families Strengthening Communities
(SFSC) parenting programmes was provided by the Parenting Early
Intervention Project Manager. Members heard that the programme
equips parents with more information on better parenting to help
children to lead violence free, healthy lifestyles.

SFSC is a community based programme specifically designed to
promote some of the protective factors associated with 'good parenting’
(developing close and warm relationships between parents and
children; using methods of discipline that support self-discipline in
children; fostering self-esteem of children; developing strategies to deal
with risky situations; managing anger). At the same time SFSC deals
with the factors associated with increased risk (inconsistent parenting;
harsh discipline in an overly critical environment; limited supervision;
isolation and lack of knowledge of community resources). Importantly,
the SFSC approach emphasises that the local environment impacts on
parenting (for example the availability of good schools) and that
parents should play an active role in helping to shape this environment
by engaging with community resources.

SFSC achieves its aims through a range of methods which include:

— Providing parents with information to empower them

— Developing anger management and positive discipline
techniques

- Providing a cultural framework to validate the historical and
family experiences of different ethnic groups

- Decreasing isolation by helping parents to connect to community
resources.

As noted in the Introduction, the Working Group visited parenting
programmes. One of these was the SFSC programme at the Pupil
Referral Unit where ten parents were present. All of them were female,
two were Bangladeshi, two African Caribbean, five White British and
one Polish. Members and parents talked in length about the benefits of
this programme and its effect in building parents’ confidence to
influence their children’s behaviour positively.

The majority of parents expressed strongly held views about the
positive impact of this programme, and it quickly became clear that
parents associated improvement in parenting with this programme.
Almost all of the parents were supportive of an increase in the number
of SFSC programmes in Tower Hamlets.

Many parents referred to the impact they felt the parenting programme

was having in improving relationships with their children. The following
excerpts are just a few examples:

16



32.

33.

34.

35.

57

“l feel more relaxed around my daughter and this
allows me to talk to my child in a more positive way”,

“I am now more positive about parenting and look
forward to spending some time with my children”.

One of the major aims of the course is to encourage positive discipline
and communication approaches. One parent said:

“Before if my daughter was behaving badly | would
scream and just shout, but now | just talk to her and
try to explain to her that what she is doing is wrong’.

One of the Members asked how the programme has helped her to
change the approach taken to disciplining her child. The parent said
that sessions on confrontation helped to manage her anger more.

The discussion then progressed to the barriers parents faced when
trying to interact with schools. The Working Group specifically asked
parents’ views on how schools could improve parental engagement.
Parents talked about the difficulty accessing information and support
that informs them about parenting activities and programmes.

“I hardly ever receive information from schools other
then details about parents’ evening or calls to say that
my son is truanting”.

Another parent commented:

“Most of the information | receive is about my child
misbehaving”.

However, some did say they receive information at times about school
activities but found those activities difficult to attend because of
childcare responsibilities.

The Working Group also talked about the way information is presented
and was keen to know if information about parenting programmes is
translated into other languages. To which, one parent replied.

"Most of the time the school does give me information
in Bengali, | think they have to. But | can read English
when it is simple and so would like information to be in

plain English. | rather the school spoke to me then sent
me letters as | feel more comfortable with that’.

During the final Scrutiny meeting, the Working Group presented its

findings from the visit to Council Officers. Parents had specifically told
the Working Group that information and support needs to encourage

17



36.

58

parents to participate in their childrens’ school. Information also needs
to be in plain English to make it easy to read and understand.

Members were informed that one of the Council’s long-term aims is to
develop the role of parents as partners of schools by giving them more
say in the way provisions is offered to pupils. Working with schools to
improve information given to parents is a vital element of the Family
Support and Parental Engagement Strategy 2007/08.

Transition Information Sessions/ Parent Information Point (PIP)

37.

38.

39.

40.

Information about the Parent Information Point (PIP) was presented to
the Working Group by the Senior Parent Support Co-ordinator. PIP
sessions provide information and support for parents at key transition
points. Parents of children new to a school or moving on to a new
phase (e.g. from years 6 to 7) are invited to a meeting where they can
find out more about the transition process and how they can support
their child. An informal discussion and/or group activity is followed by a
‘market place’ session, where parents can pick up leaflets and
information about facilities and activities across the borough.

Attention was drawn to the approach taken by Langdon Park School.
When primary children visit the school at the end of the summer term
parents are also invited. After a brief introduction by the Headteacher
children go to class with their form tutor and parents are divided into
the same tutor groups as their children. Each group of parents is
facilitated by a member of staff and a year 11 student, who is able to
translate. Parents then take part in a PIP session, where they have an
opportunity to meet other parents and share information and concerns.

The second visit by the Working Group was to a Transition Information
Session at Raines Foundation School. Many parents of year 7 pupils
were present. The Working Group observed parents interact with
teachers and talked to parents about the difficulty they and their
children face when transferring from primary to secondary school.

The majority of parents talked about the benefits of this type of
information session in helping their child to manage the transition

18



41.

42.

43.

44,

45.

99

between primary and secondary schools. It became obvious that
parents associated the programme with a more seamless and effective
transition.

One parent said:

“This programme is really good. | get to see the school
that my son will be attending and meet his teachers.
This is a very stressful time for me as | know my son
is really nervous about starting year 7, so coming
here reassures me that he will be ok. It’s also good that
my son is here. It will help to familiarise the place”.

The PIP session gives parents an opportunity to ask questions about
the school that their children will be attending. As one of them said:

“It’s really good that there is a dedicated point to ask
questions. | have so many things on my mind ..... really
nervous about my son starting secondary school”.

The Working Group asked parents how they thought schools could
improve the transition process. In response parents were keen to
continue to have transition programmes for the first few months.

“This session is great, but | would like to come back
again to talk with teachers about how my child is doing.
| don’t mean parents’ evenings, but reqular meetings”.

One parent said:

“I really want to support my daughter and so need to
know what she will be studying. If | can meet with her
teachers regularly then that would help me immensely”.

Another parent talked about her daughter who has just started year 10
to study GCSE. The Group was told that transition from year 9 to year
10 has been difficult:

” My daughter is finding the adjustment hard to take.

I only wish the school gave me more information about

the transition from year 9 to GCSE so that | could have helped
her cope”.

The Working Group presented its findings from the Raines Foundation
School visit to Officers of the Council and other Members of the
Working Group that could not attend. The Working Group felt that the
PIP Session was successful and that parents found the opportunity to
come into school to meet teachers useful. However, they did ask that
more information is given to parents about secondary school work to
enable them to support their child better. Moreover the group were

19



60

keen for a similar transition session to be available to parents of year 9
pupils about to start GCSE and parents of GCSE pupils about to start
college or Post 16 courses.

Passport to Learning and Targeted workshops for Year 7 parents

46. The Parental Engagement Co-ordinator informed the Working Group of
the Passport to Learning programme. The programme provides
parents with a means of reflecting and recording on educational,
training, work and volunteering experiences. Parents are supported to
build up a record of skills and knowledge they have developed to
support their children’s learning and development. Parents can attend
a variety of Passport to Learning courses including “Building Skills and
Confidence” and “Volunteering in your Child’s school”

47.  The programme includes workshops aimed to increase parents’
confidence and improve attendance rates of children. Also to increase
parents’ confidence and knowledge of the school system and increase
parental involvement at parent conferences and consultations, pupil
review days and school initiatives.

48. The Working Group was invited to attend a parents’ meeting run in
partnership by Oaklands Secondary School, Elizabeth Selby Primary
School and Lawdale Junior School. The group meet regularly to
discuss parenting issues with each other. Ten parents were present.

49. Members were keen to understand the level of information and support
parents receive from schools and whether information is translated into
different languages. In general, parents felt very positive about the
information the school provided.

“My daughter’s school is very good in keeping me
informed and up to date with her progress”.

20



50.

51.

52.

61

Another parent said:

“The school provides clear information on how my
child is getting on and gave information that helped
me understand how | could support my child’s progress’.

However one Bangladeshi female parent did say that information
received at times was full of jargon and difficult to understand.

“Sometimes | can’t understand the English.”

The Working Group specifically asked if this is because English is her
second language. To which the parent replied “yes”.

Furthermore, Members spent time discussing with parents whether
they find their child’s school welcoming. In the introductory review
meeting, Officers from the Equalities and Parental Engagement team
informed Members that one way to improve parental engagement is for
schools to be more welcoming, especially for the hard to reach groups.
When talking with parents some said they feel uncomfortable attending
parents’ evenings and at times would “stay away”. When asked the
reason, one parent said:

‘I feel as if | am always in the wrong and that the teachers
are always right’.

One of the key aims of this review was to evaluate the relationship
between schools and parents to see if schools are involving parents in
key decisions. The Working Group discussed this with parents to
distinguish whether it is easy for them to contact the school to have a
say about the way the school is being run. The majority of the parents
said that the schools that their children go to, on the whole, are
accessible. However, one parent said that:

“The setup is good within this cluster but really poor in
my other child’s secondary school, where accessing the
school is difficult. | just want the same for all my children”.

Furthermore another parent said:

“It’s the same faces that attend this programme, the
school needs to find a way to encourage more parents
to attend to get their views on how the school is run’.

Parents also said that this cluster is specifically good at notifying
parents of services and parenting programmes that its schools are
running. Members heard that information about events and
programmes are regularly sent to parents. Despite the success of this
programme the Working Group was interested to know how attendance

21



53.

54.

62

at this meeting could be improved. Parents said that “information needs
to be in different languages”. The Parental Engagement Co-ordinator
did say that a continual effort is always made to translate documents.

The parents at this meeting clearly demonstrated the good work found
within this mini cluster, during the development of the
recommendations, Officers said that space to hold meetings are
important and that the Oaklands mini cluster is lucky in that it has a
community centre that can be used.

The Headteacher of Oaklands School, who was also present on this
visit, stressed the importance of having a dedicated space to give
parents an opportunity to discuss how their children’s school is
managed. Patrice Canavan said that parents are “customers of the
education service as well as key partners in their children’s education.
As such they should expect involvement in the running of their
children’s school and for those who lead and manage the school to be
accountable to them. Schools need to have a detailed understanding of
the needs, expectations and experiences of parents in order to assess
whether they are meeting them. Therefore all schools needed to
develop a welcoming atmosphere that is understanding of the needs of
the parent’.

Maths curriculum workshop

55.

The Ocean Maths Project was originally set upon the Ocean Estate in
Stepney and has expanded across the borough. The area has a high
black, Asian and minority ethnic (BAME) population. The project aims
to help raise the educational attainment and expectations of local
young people and develop positive links between Schools and the local
community.

22



56.

57.

58.

59.

60.

61.

62.

63

The Director of Ocean Maths highlighted how the project uses specially
designed homework, focussing on a game which children and parents
or their carers can play together. This is designed to support and
enhance what children learn in school. Each term, parents are invited
to a workshop where they are shown how to play the games and
offered additional ways to support their children’s education.

The final visit of the Working Group was to see the Maths Project in
action at Stepney Green Secondary School. Twenty parents were
present, all of whom were of Bangladeshi background. The Group
observed parents working with their children and afterwards talked to
them about the project.

The majority of parents were positive about the impact of this
programme, and it quickly became clear that parents associated
improvement in understanding the work that their child does in school
to this programme. Almost all of the parents were vociferously for an
increase in this type of workshop across Tower Hamlets.

Many parents believed the parenting programme improved the
relationship with their child’s school. One parent said:

“Before | would never attend the school, this workshop
forces me to attend and meet my sons’ teachers”.

Furthermore one parent said:

“It has helped me to understand the education that
my son receives”.

Members thought the workshop was a great example of parents
working with their children and teachers. The atmosphere was lively
and it was clearly visible that parents really enjoyed themselves.

At the final scrutiny meeting the Working Group gave feedback to
Officers and those Members that could not attend the Ocean Maths
Project Workshop. From observing the workshop and speaking with
parents and teachers, it is the Working Group’s view that this project
plays an important part in encouraging parents to play an active role in
the development of their child’s learning and improving the relationship
between parents and schools.

Officers informed the Working Group that the Ocean Maths Project
continues to be a success at Stepney Green School and that the
excellent GCSE Maths results that the School has obtained in the last
couple of years can be linked to the success of the project.




64

Conclusion

63.

64.

65.

66.

The Working Group welcomed the opportunity to examine in detail the
various parental engagement initiatives operating locally. From visits
made to different schools it was clear that whilst a lot of good work is
already underway to get parents more involved in their childrens’
schooling, more work is required to secure engagement from hard to
reach parents.

Members wanted to find ways to help parents feel more confident when
interacting with schools. The review found that programmes such as
the Strengthening Families Strengthening Communities Parenting
Programme did to some extent help to build confidence amongst
parents. Although upon reflection, more work is needed to empower
parents to feel totally comfortable and confident when engaging with
schools.

The recommendations are based primarily on the visits and reflect
what parents have to say about ways engagement can be improved.
Discussions have also been held with Children’s Services throughout
to ensure that the recommendations are necessary to improve parental
engagement.

Finally, the Working Group hopes that the implementation of the
recommendations and the on going work of Children’s Services will
further increase parental engagement and consequently improve
educational achievement to improve outcomes for young people.

24



65

LIFELONG LEARNING SCRUTINY PANEL

REVIEW OF PARENTAL INVOLVEMENT IN EDUCATION

BHARINGEY COUNCILE&

APRIL 2004




66

CONTENTS
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

w

INTRODUCTION

Terms of Reference

Background

Adviser to the Panel
Membership of the Review Panel
Review Process

P

FINDINGS FROM RESEARCH

What is Parental Involvement
Key Research Findings

DfES material

Barriers to Parental Involvement

o

CURRENT ARRANGEMENTS AND INITIATIVES

The Parental Outreach Team

Family Learning

LEA’s General Approach

Schools Good Practice

Supplementary and Language Schools

6. WEAKNESSES
7. THE WAY AHEAD

Shared Vision

Data

Headteachers role

Developing Home/School Dialogue
Accessibility

Training and Developing

Harder to Reach Parents

LEA Consultation with Parents
Secondary Schools

Evaluation and Monitoring

APPENDIX 1: PARTICIPANTS IN THE REVIEW

Scrutiny Review of Parental Involvement in Education — April 2004

PAGE

O NNN~N N

©

10
11

12

13
13
13
15
15

17

19

19
21
21
22
23
24
25
26
28
29

Page 2 of 30



67

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 In this review the Panel found plenty of evidence both from the research data and
from our meetings and visits that working with parents as partners in the education of
their children is important and will help to raise achievement levels in our schools.

1.2 Our LEA has recognised the need for further work to increase parental involvement:
it is a theme in the LEA’s Education Development Plan. The LEA has set up a
Steering Group, comprising those staff with the closest involvement with parents, to
draw up an action plan by September 2004. The report of this review will be referred
to the Steering Group to help them in their work.

1.3 We found much good work with parents going on in our schools with valuable
support provided by the LEA. The borough appears to compare well with others in
terms of the range, number and quality of initiatives and projects in place. The
weaknesses we have identified concern the processes — in particular co-ordination,
the lack of an over-arching plan, limited data, the need for a clear message from the
LEA to all schools and procedures to ensure close working with community groups.

1.4 Our report provides information that we have gathered about best practice elsewhere
and endeavours to offer some insight into the barriers that inhibit some parents from
closer involvement. Our recommendations are specific and are about how to take
our involvement with parents a step further. They include the need for a vision and
for structures within the LEA that will facilitate close working, the data that should be
readily available, the processes that need to be in place to support schools and
teachers, the issues to be addressed with the supplementary schools and
suggestions on training and development.

1.5 We are confident that the LEA will take account of our recommendations and we
look forward to reading the Steering Group’s action plan in September.

Scrutiny Review of Parental Involvement in Education — April 2004 Page 3 of 30



68

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

1. That the Steering Group developing the LEA’s action for addressing parental
involvement include parent representatives amongst its membership.

2. That a shared vision of parental involvement and what it entails that is based
on the principle of empowering parents be developed and agreed jointly by the
LEA, schools and parents.

3. That the LEA decide on the most appropriate structure to facilitate the
development of parental involvement taking account of resources available.

4. That the expertise and effective links with the different communities developed
by the Parental Outreach Team be used to best effect.

5. That the key roles for the LEA in whatever structural arrangement is chosen be
as follows:

(i). Assisting schools in developing their work with parents
(ii). Providing strategic direction

(iii). Building links with organisations working actively with parents from both
within and outside of the Council

(iv). Disseminating information
(v). Spreading good practice

6. That specific consideration be given to the use of the Networked Learning
Communities for the spreading of good practice in work with parents.

7. That costings that are realistic and sustainable be developed for funding the
development of parental involvement by the LEA.

8. That regular contact be maintained by the LEA with all parents awaiting a
school place within the Borough.

9. That the Steering Group look into the merits of setting up a Parents
Consortium in Haringey.

10. That a system be set up to collect basic information from schools about any
initiatives involving parents, and from supplementary and language schools,
the information to be evaluated and disseminated as appropriate.

11. The LEA should establish a system for collecting information from schools on
the level of attendance at parents evenings and the steps taken to
communicate with those parents who do not attend.

12. That a specific strategy to persuade Headteachers and school governing

bodies of the value of prioritising action to develop parental involvement in
schools be developed.

Scrutiny Review of Parental Involvement in Education — April 2004 Page 4 of 30



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

69

That the LEA allocate appropriate resources to improving performance in
schools where it has been identified that parental involvement requires
development and that these schools be targeted for action within a specified
timescale.

That full use be made of information produced by the DfES on involving
parents supplemented, as necessary, by Haringey specific material.

That further consideration be given to introducing “Welcome to Haringey”
induction sessions for parents new to the Borough.

That a feasibility study be undertaken on the merits of setting up of a specific
centre for parents within the Borough.

That the LEA work with schools to ensure that they develop strategies for
making parents welcome.

That regular training sessions be introduced for teachers on effective working
and communication with parents.

That an evaluation of current family learning initiatives be undertaken that
includes a sustainability strategy.

That current initiatives by the LEA to build links with supplementary schools
be strongly supported and that the following issues be specifically addressed:

e Reviewing assistance with the cost of hiring premises

o The possibility of developing SHARE projects with them

e The provision of guidance on the requirements of the national curriculum
e Guidance and assistance on applying for available grant funding

That any increase in the level of assistance provided for supplementary
schools be subject to the establishment of satisfactory monitoring

arrangements.

The LEA support initiatives by the community groups to secure recognised
examination accreditation for their languages.

That the LEA undertakes further developmental work to strengthen links with
community groups and ethnic minority organisations.

That efforts to ensure that the ethnic breakdown of senior management
positions within the LEA are reflective of the local community be maintained
and additional strategies be considered to remedy the current imbalance.

That the LEA undertake a targeted recruitment drive for school governors from
the different communities and devise a support programme to encourage and
build the capacity of these governors.

Scrutiny Review of Parental Involvement in Education — April 2004 Page 5 of 30



26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

70

That further consideration be given by the LEA about how it consults with
parents on educational issues and, in particular, ensuring the views obtained
are truly representative. This should include the merits of setting up a parents
panel on the lines of the Tower Hamlets panel.

That training be available to governors on how best to encourage greater
parental involvement.

That a survey of PTAs/HSAs within the Borough be undertaken and that
consideration be given by the LEA to developing guidance to schools on
starting PTAs/HSAs and on developing the role of existing associations.

That the differing needs and challenges presented by developing parental
involvement in secondary schools be identified and addressed strategically by
the Steering Group.

That the Steering Group develop a framework for effective monitoring and
evaluation.

Scrutiny Review of Parental Involvement in Education — April 2004 Page 6 of 30



3.

71

INTRODUCTION

Terms of Reference

3.1

The terms of reference for the review were:

“To review current policy and practice by the LEA in supporting and encouraging
parental and community involvement with a particular, but not exclusive, focus on
secondary schools and, with reference to key messages from research and best
practice, make recommendations to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on
appropriate steps to further improve it

Background

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

In the course of last year’s review of inclusive education the Panel had looked at
some successful initiatives in the Borough involving parents. The report of that
review included a recommendation to develop parental involvement work further,
particularly in secondary schools.

The LEA told us that it regards development of parental involvement as vitally
important in the context of raising educational achievement. It had planned originally
to set up a new central unit to lead on parental involvement work. After further
consideration, however they have decided that the better course of action is to bring
together the different teams within the LEA currently working with parents in a
Steering Group tasked with drawing up an action plan. This is described in more
detail at paragraph 5.16. The LEA intends to use this Scrutiny Panel report to
provide the Steering Group with a base and an agenda to inform their discussions.

The Panel considered it important to produce this report in a reasonable timescale
so that the conclusions and recommendations could be used by the Steering Group
and there was no delay in the preparation of the action plan. The recommendations
apply equally to primary and secondary schools. However, we recognise that there
are some specific issues facing secondary schools. We have highlighted these on
the basis of the evidence that we received but realise that further work is required
and recommend that the Steering Group consider this further.

For the purposes of this review, the word “parents” has been used to mean parents,
carers and guardians reflecting the diversity of arrangements for looking after and
bringing up children and young people.

Adviser to the Panel

3.6

The Panel was very fortunate to have the services of Dr. Carol Vincent from the
Institute of Education at the University of London. Dr Vincent has undertaken
specific research in this area as well as being a Haringey parent.

Membership of the Review Panel

3.7

The membership of the Panel was as follows:
Councillors Santry (Chair), Fabian, Griffith, Haley, Bob Harris, Laird and Robertson

Church Representatives: Mrs. S. Berkery-Smith

Scrutiny Review of Parental Involvement in Education — April 2004 Page 7 of 30



72

Parent Governor Representatives: Ms. L. Pine and Mr. R. Sharp

REJCC Co-opted Member: Mr. G. Martin

Review Process

3.8 The work of the Panel included the following:

Receiving a response from the LEA to the terms of reference of the review and,
through this, establishing current LEA practice and plans

Receiving a briefing on current issues, research findings and best practice from
the Adviser to the Panel

Meeting with local parents, governors, and organisations representing ethnic
community groups

Visiting several local schools to see current initiatives in practice and speaking to
Headteachers and teachers

Looking at best practice elsewhere, including a visit to the London Borough of
Tower Hamlets

Analysing relevant data and information.

Scrutiny Review of Parental Involvement in Education — April 2004 Page 8 of 30



73

4. FINDINGS FROM RESEARCH

What is parental involvement?

4.1

The DfES says:

“Children have two main educators in their lives — their parents and their teachers.
Parents are the prime educators until the child attends nursery or starts school and
remain a major influence on their children’s learning through school and beyond.
There is no clear line to show where the parents’ input stops and the teachers’ input
begins. The school and parents all have crucial roles to play and the impact is
greater if parents and schools work in partnership.

There is no universal agreement on what parental involvement is, however there are
two broad strands.

e Parents’ involvement in the life of the school.
e Their involvement in support of the individual child at home and at school.”

Key research findings

4.2

4.3

Key research findings have highlighted the huge impact that parental involvement
has on performance:

o For primary school children, the impact of parents taking an interest is greater
than the quality of the school that they attend.

J A 1999 study found that parental involvement had significant effects on
achievement into adolescence. It found that parental involvement in a child’s
schooling was a more powerful force than other family background indicators
such as social class, family size and level of parental education and contributes
to no less than 10% of variation in achievement. For example children with
very interested parents progressed 15-17% more in mathematics and reading
between ages 11-16.

o The involvement of parents in secondary education has an effect on continued
development.

o In schools with matched intakes, those who do best have, among other things,
strong links with parents and families

o When similar schools are compared, those with string home-school links have
consistently fewer problems related to pupil work and behaviour

We noted that there have been a number of significant research projects in recent
years which have highlighted particular aspects of parental involvement in a child’s
education.

e The Effective Provision of Pre-School Education (EPPE) Project monitors 2,800
childrens’ progress across the range of pre-school provision. This has found that
aspects of the home learning environment have a significant impact on children’s
cognitive development both at age three years plus and again a school entry.

Scrutiny Review of Parental Involvement in Education — April 2004 Page 9 of 30



74

Our adviser brought to our attention some qualitative research on parental
involvement which shows that the overwhelming majority of parents have clear
and strong views on educational issues including views on school organisation.
Parents, however, were often reluctant to enter into a dialogue with schools and
to schools therefore it might not be apparent that the parents had such views. A
MORI poll in 1999 found that 48% of parents had not spoken once to teachers
during the previous school term.

There was an uneven balance of power between schools and parents with
parents feeling at a disadvantage. The majority of parents found it hard to
engage effectively, despite their class background . (Hallgarten.J 2000).

Research into the level of engagement of parents puts them in three groups —
high, intermediate and low - with the groups strongly influenced by class. Those
within the high category, often from professional occupations, saw involvement
as their duty. They were concerned to monitor and supervise closely. There was
less information available to the intermediate group, who did not monitor so
closely and were more likely to take up welfare issues than achievement issues.
The low group had the highest percentage of parent from the lowest socio-
economic group and they tended to see schools as operating within a separate
sphere. (Vincent.C. & Martin.J, 2002, Class, culture and agency, Discourse, 23,
1: 109-138)

Research has identified two general types of parental engagement:

(i). Spontaneous. This type of engagement was prompted by an interest in the
work of children and the school and was informal in nature. These interventions
were generally effective. Middle class parents tended to take the most
advantage of such opportunities.

(ii). Planned. The effectiveness of these was harder to evaluate as it was
difficult to measure their impact precisely. They included initiatives such as
family learning programmes. Nevertheless, there was some evidence from
evaluations that they could improve relationships between schools and parents,
building confidence and self-esteem on the part of parents as well as being
enjoyable.

DfES Material

4.4 The Government's 1997 White Paper “Excellence in Schools” sets out a three strand

strategy which guides the majority of DfES initiatives:

Providing information to parents
Giving parents a more effective voice

Encouraging families to learn together

4.5 We noted the wealth of useful material available from the DFES. The publication

‘The Impact of Parental Involvement on Children’s Education’ details the research
conclusions and ‘Materials for Schools: Involving Parents, Raising Achievement’ has
plenty of guidance on developing home-school links, taking action to involve parents

Scrutiny Review of Parental Involvement in Education — April 2004 Page 10 of 30



75

and training and professional development for teachers around parental involvement.

In addition the websites www.teachernet.cov.uk and www.parentcentre.gov.uk.
provide further information.

Barriers to parental involvement

4.6 From the research and from the oral evidence gathered by the Panel we identified
the following as key barriers:

e There may be unease about involvement amongst parents from some social
groups whose own experience of school has been less than positive.

e Some parents from ethnic community groups will be hampered by language
difficulties or come from a culture where notions of parental involvement in
schools do not exist. Research on the influence of ethnicity is limited but one
study revealed a lack of meaningful communication between these parents and
schools.

e Some parents will be worried about being branded as “trouble makers”.

e Some schools and teachers do not see parents as partners in a child’s education.
They see parents as providing support to the school but may lack the time for
closer involvement and keep them at a slight distance. Parental involvement is
not an integral part of the professional teaching culture.

e Parents’ resources (material, cultural and social) differ greatly. Parental
involvement can be costly in terms of the time and commitment required from all
those involved. For example some parents are familiar with the culture of
meetings. Social resources include social networks. On the whole it is the
mothers that become involved in their children’s schools.

Scrutiny Review of Parental Involvement in Education — April 2004 Page 11 of 30



76

5. CURRENT ARRANGEMENTS AND INITIATIVES

5.1 We learnt that there is a great deal work already taking place with parents in
Haringey both on an individual basis and with groups. Many schools have
undertaken their own initiatives.

5.2 The LEA also has a team of staff with a specific role to work with parents:

The Parental Outreach Team

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

The Parental Outreach Team works with parents on an individual and collective
basis. The team was set up in 1995 following a survey that showed 60% of parents
had poor communications with their childrens’ schools. The aim was to improve
links with the community and promote parental involvement as a key way of raising
levels of achievement. Many parents were also intimidated by what they perceived to
be the bureaucracy of the education system. It was felt that there was a need to
provide them with an understanding of how the system worked. Specific
communities were targeted and these were the main ethnic minority communities
within the Borough.

The team now has 7 staff with each member providing information and advice,
training and advocacy to a specific ethnic minority community. They:

o Help parents to understand the British education system

o Guide parents through the LEA’s procedures, especially at the admission
stage

. Offer facilitation in crisis situations

. Provide support for special educational needs (SEN) reviews, post exclusion
meetings, parent consultations and at the transfer to secondary school stage

o Work to set up and support family learning

o Work with community organisations to build capacity

o Run advice surgeries for parents.

Parents often need support in registering their children for schools and an
explanation of the documentation requirements. There may be delays in identifying
a school place. We were told that it is not currently LEA practice to contact parents
until a place comes up and, if the wait for a place is significant, parents can become
disaffected. The transfer to secondary school can be another cause of difficulty for
parents and the team provides support to parents who may not get the school of
their choice.

The team is involved with the family learning and the “SHARE” projects and has
helped set up these projects. The SHARE programme is a DFES initiative managed
by the Community Education Development Centre (CEDC) where parents, teachers
and children work on activities together both at home and in the classroom. It has not
taken off quite so well in secondary schools as in primaries, where there are over 12
projects, but there are schemes at White Hart Lane School and Northumberland
Park Community School.

The team has close links with Haringey Adult Learning Service (HALS) and helps to
recruit parents for their family learning classes. It runs a number of special projects
including the African & African Caribbean Academic Excellence Awards.

Scrutiny Review of Parental Involvement in Education — April 2004 Page 12 of 30



77

5.8 As each member of the team has a direct link with a specific community organisation
they work closely with them to improve their capacity to support their members in
addressing educational issues. Some communities have set up specific forums to
consider education issues e.g. the Somali Parents Association now has a part-time
dedicated education officer to assist the community. Consultation is taking place
with a number of representatives from faith groups to discuss the development of an
education forum and a programme.

5.9 Referrals come from a range of sources including schools, parents and faith and
community groups. There has been a tendency for the team to be called in where
there is a crisis rather than beforehand but this is diminishing as schools become
more confident in their ability to handle such situations.

Family Learning

5.10 The Haringey Adult Learning Service (HALS) is in the lead on family learning. There
is a wide range of over 30 family learning schemes, ESOL, SHARE and volunteer
reading help projects running in Haringey schools and these reached approximately
600 families last year. They are run by a number of providers including HALS, the
Workers Education Association and the College of North East London. Such
activities cover the whole of the Borough although most in practice are concentrated
in the east of the Borough. The imbalance is due to the funding structure — the
funding is only available to support initiatives in the areas of deprivation.

5.11 We visited some of these projects and were impressed by the benefits they brought
to the parents who participated as well as their children and by parents’ enthusiasm.
We attended the annual Parental Involvement Celebration Day organised by the
Parental Involvement Co-ordinator in HALS which was very popular and where
demonstrations take place of the work and activities undertaken. A recent inspection
of HALS by the Adult Learning Inspectorate rated family learning as good and a
strength in the Borough.

5.12 Of particular note is the father's group based at South Harringay Infant School.
Research has shown that a father’s interest in a child’s schooling is strongly linked to
educational outcomes for their child and therefore initiatives such has this have clear
potential to yield results.

SOUTH HARRINGAY DADS GROUP:

This group is a SHARE project and focuses on literacy and art. The principles that
underpin the group are the sharing of experience, the unimportance of language barriers
and the warmth of the relationships that have been generated. The children are pleased
with the interest that their fathers show in their school since school is a very important
element of their lives. The group has undertaken a range of activities together such as
cooking Makote (a Zambian stew), photo portraits, mosaics poetry and talking to the
children about their work in class.

LEA’s General Approach

5.13 The LEA sees greater parental involvement as an essential part of the raising
achievement agenda. The LEA recognises that current arrangements for parental

Scrutiny Review of Parental Involvement in Education — April 2004 Page 13 of 30




5.14

5.15

5.16

5.17

5.18

5.19

5.20

78

involvement within the Borough are under-developed and has planned to address
the issue. Developing parental involvement is a theme within the Education
Development Plan.

The intention is to raise the profile of parental participation and strengthen the
support given to schools and parents. The LEA recognises that work with parents
has grown in an incremental fashion, as and when funding and partnership
opportunities have arisen. In some cases the authority has been able to mainstream
funding for particular projects but the majority of the work is dependent on short term
funding from external sources.

The LEA recognises that there is room to improve the co-ordination and
management of the different staff groups working with parents. It has recently set up
a Parent and Community Involvement Steering Group to be led by a co-ordinator,
managed by the newly appointed manager for Community Services and
Regeneration.

There are several groups of staff across the LEA who work with parents as well as
staff in other services and they will all be represented on the Steering Group. These
include the parental outreach team (the head will act as the co-ordinator),
supplementary schools support, the Excellence in Cities teams, Sure Start, the SEN
Parent Partnership, SHARE Training and HALS Family Learning and the African
Schools Association. As the plan is concerned with enabling parents to play a more
active role, it would also seem appropriate for parents to be represented on the
Group.

A major conference is planned to coincide with parental involvement week in June
this year and the intention is to publish an action plan by September 2004. This will
outline how current services can be maintained and their future secured, as well as
detailing how work with parents can further assist in raising educational achievement
in Haringey. £95,000 of funding from the Neighbourhood Renewal Fund (NRF), plus
£80,000 from the LEA budget, has been agreed for 2004/5 to support a range of
activities which will include the planned conference, capacity building workshops, 2
new community based SHARE projects, improved marketing of parental support
services and other initiatives.

The LEA is hoping that the developments taking place will lead to:

o A better co-ordinated service for parents

o A higher profile for parental participation

o Improved support for schools and parents.

The ultimate aim is to help empower parents to become effective advocates for their
children and to help schools achieve high levels of attainment by ensuring that they
have parents with high expectations who are prepared to challenge.

A part of the LEA’s strategy will be to help parents access support where needed
from other parts of the Council, such as housing and social services. Some families
find it difficult to engage with authority and are unable to access the support intended

for them. Schools are particularly well placed to signpost parents to the help they
need. In some cases resolving issues around benefits and social services will allow

Scrutiny Review of Parental Involvement in Education — April 2004 Page 14 of 30



79

a child to fulfil their potential and may free up parents to involve themselves more
closely in their child’s education. It is intended that the LEA will develop the support
provided for families in need though multi agency work with, for instance, housing
and social services. Strong links will be built with other services and the
development of Childrens Centres should be of real assistance here.

Recommendation:

e That the Steering Group, developing the LEA’s action for addressing parental
involvement, include parent representatives amongst its membership.

Schools Good Practice

5.21 There is evidence of much good practice already taking place in schools within the
Borough. All the recent school Ofsted reports have commented positively about
school efforts to involve parents. In the evidence we received we learnt that small
things like personalised invitations, making events attractive and friendly, and having
clear objectives can make a big difference.

EXAMPLES OF GOOD PRACTICE IN HARINGEY:

o Welbourne Primary School invites parents to state the time they want to see the
teacher (tick box form) and sends the invitation in the language of the parents.

o White Hart Lane School works closely with community groups and telephones every
parent in advance of parents’ evenings to ensure attendance. Their attendance figures
have improved dramatically from 30-40% to almost 100%. This has also coincided
with a substantial improvement in test results.

e Risley Avenue Primary School has a Turkish speaking learning mentor whose
responsibility it is to engage with Turkish parents.

e Some schools undertake home visits before children start school. This means that
when parents and children go to the school for the first time, there will be at least one
familiar face to greet them.

5.22 Whilst we heard some anecdotal evidence of poor practice, none of this was specific.
The difference between the schools that perform well and others appears to be that
the successful ones are proactive. We understand there is an audit being undertaken
of all work undertaken by schools with parents. This will help to identify schools
where there are specific weaknesses and should allow the LEA to target these for
assistance.

5.23 There is currently no central source of knowledge on what schools are doing and no
process for spreading best practice around. There are six Networked Learning
Communities within the Borough and they, in particular, could have a role here. They
bring together clusters of schools, the LEA and the wider community to work
collaboratively to raise standards and improve opportunities for their pupils. They
are a means by which schools can learn from and with each other and find solutions
to common problems.

Scrutiny Review of Parental Involvement in Education — April 2004 Page 15 of 30




80

Supplementary and Language Schools

5.24

5.25

5.26

5.27

5.28

We heard from the Haringey Standing Committee on Community Languages
(HSCCL) about the important role played by the supplementary and language
schools in Haringey. There are approximately 2,000 pupils who attend
supplementary schools regularly in the Borough and they can therefore have a major
influence on achievement levels. In addition to language, they also teach a range of
other subjects including those from the national curriculum. They also claim a level
of success in teaching pupils that may be disaffected with mainstream schools.

Some, but in practice very few, supplementary schools receive financial support from
the Council. The LEA has appointed a part-time supplementary schools co-ordinator
whose appointment is very welcome to the schools. The LEA is re-examining its
relationship with supplementary schools and is being assisted in this by the DfES.
An audit of local supplementary schools and the work that the LEA undertakes with
them is currently in progress. There is currently only limited funding available to
support supplementary schools and it has been directed to just one school. Through
the audit, they hope to be able to identify which schools require additional support.
Contact has been established with virtually all such schools but some groups are
easier to engage with than others.

The LEA wishes to establish closer links with all supplementary schools. It aims to
link the work being undertaken in supplementary schools work with the mainstream
curriculum. A large conference is in the process of being arranged that will bring
together supplementary schools and mainstream schools using parents as the link.
A bid for Neighbourhood Renewable Funding had been made to fund the work and
the African Schools Association will be taking a leading role in the project and
working with all supplementary schools.

We identified several key issues that the LEA should consider in relation to
supplementary schools:

e Assistance with the cost of premises. A particular concern for supplementary
schools is the rents that they were charged now by Jarvis for the hire of school
premises. Since the PFI contract, there had been a large increase in the fees
charged and schools are struggling to pay the current amounts.

e We think that there must be a number of funding streams that supplementary
schools could access and guidance and assistance could be given to them in
bidding.

e The possibility of developing SHARE projects with them

e Providing guidance on the requirements of the national curriculum

The LEAs Steering Group should look closely at all of these issues. In particular,
there needs to be consistency in approach and an investigation of pricing polices in

relation to premises. Any increase in the level of assistance provided should be tied
to the establishment of satisfactory monitoring arrangements.

Scrutiny Review of Parental Involvement in Education — April 2004 Page 16 of 30



6.

81

WEAKNESSES

6.1

Vi.

Vii.

viii.

The Panel has identified the following areas of weaknesses, some the LEA has
already identified and is addressing and some will need to be considered further by
the Steering Group. These are discussed in more detail in Chapter 7.

At the moment there is no shared vision of what parental involvement means and
entails. It is important that whatever is agreed is shared and owned not only by the
LEA and schools but also by the wider education community and especially parents.

As the LEA acknowledges, there needs to be more co-ordination between the
different teams working with parents. Although we were told that the teams do work
closely we were not completely convinced. For example Family Learning could be
more closely involved in policy development. Areas like admissions - often the first
LEA contact for parents - need to be more closely involved.

There is a lack of central information available about what efforts the schools are
making to strengthen parental involvement. This means in turn that there is little or
no process for exchanging good practice.

At present the direct support provided through the Parental Outreach team and the
Family Learning schemes is concentrated in the east of the borough where the short
term funding is available to support initiatives. There will, however, be parents who
it is difficult to involve in all parts of the borough and there needs to be a process for
ensuring that schools support and encourage these parents.

The structure for supporting parental involvement within the LEA has still to be
decided. A suitable structure needs to be in place that will foster close co-operation
and utilise resources effectively. We identify in para 7.4 three possible models for
the LEA to consider.

The supplementary and language schools are a valuable but underused resource in
the development of parental involvement. The current audit of these schools needs
to be completed as soon as possible and there needs to be meaningful engagement
to address the issues of concern to the schools and to develop plans to involve them
in the development of new initiatives.

Neither Headteachers nor governing bodies are currently given any steer or
guidance from the LEA about how they can involve parents more. The evidence we
received, confirmed by the research findings, is that effective parental involvement in
a school starts at the top. It needs to be led by the headteacher: there needs to be
an ethos created and embedded in school practice.

Information about which schools are less good at involving parents appears thin —
the school improvement officers are no doubt aware but we were not told of any
systems for gathering this information or strategies for addressing the weakness.

The DfES guidance recommends that schools undertake an audit and self-
assessment of their home-school links and advocates development of a home-
school policy. We were not told of any schools, even the ones who were very
effective at involving their parents, which had undertaken such an audit or had a
policy in place. It seems as though most schools lack a systematic approach to
involving parents.

Scrutiny Review of Parental Involvement in Education — April 2004 Page 17 of 30



X.

82

Governing bodies are not encouraged to address the issue of how the school might
strengthen its links with parents nor is any specific training provided.

Scrutiny Review of Parental Involvement in Education — April 2004 Page 18 of 30



83

7. THE WAY AHEAD

7.1 It may be useful at this point to refer to some comments made by Professor John
Bastiani, probably the leading academic in the field of parental involvement. His
comments provide a helpful checklist. He was commenting on Tower Hamlets LEA,
considered exemplary in regard to parental involvement:

It had a strategy for parental involvement

It had a senior officer responsible for co-ordinating parental involvement

It has a parents’ centre

There had been a lot of work at Headteacher level in terms of sharing good

practice and ideas

o They had done work on the role of governors and how to encourage and
support them

o Networks had been set up: one for early years and a consortium involving 49
groups interested in educational matters

o There was an infrastructure to service the needs of parents and support

parental involvement.

Shared Vision

7.2 A shared vision needs to be developed of what parental and community involvement
means and it needs to be owned by the LEA, schools and parents. There should be
recognition by all parties of the contribution that all parents make to their childrens’
learning. We were told about the very close relations the Early Excellence Centres
build up with parents when children are at the pre-school stage but the tendency for
these to weaken as children progress through the education system. Our meeting
with the African Caribbean Leadership Council representatives emphasised the
importance of schools developing a clear ethos that parents are partners, of
encouraging open and honest discussions between parents and schools, of
empowering parents to work with schools and teachers and convincing them that
their opinions are valued and their culture appreciated.

7.3 We would expect the Steering Group’s action plan to form the strategy for achieving
the vision.

Recommendation:

e That a shared vision of parental involvement and what it entails that is based on
the principle of empowering parents be developed and agreed jointly by the LEA
schools and parents.

Co-ordination

7.4 The LEA will need to decide the most appropriate structure for delivering the
improvements in parental involvement. The Panel identified the following possible
models:

¢ |dentifying a specific senior officer within the LEA to act as a facilitator and
champion for parental involvement. This is the structure adopted by Tower
Hamlets: the officer is located in the school improvement team and works part-

Scrutiny Review of Parental Involvement in Education — April 2004 Page 19 of 30



7.5

7.6

7.7

84

time on parental involvement with some administrative support.

e The Parental Outreach Team could take the lead role. The team now works to
the newly appointed head of Community Services and Regeneration and the
head of the Parental Outreach Team will co-ordinate the Parental and
Community Involvement Steering Group. We think it would be necessary to
redefine the team’s current role to place more emphasis on setting up systems
rather than casework. It would leave the issue of how to manage the valuable
casework done at present. Almost certainly it will need schools to take more
responsibility but the support and guidance will need to be in place first.

e Creating a separate central unit that brings together all the teams with a central
involvement with parents: this could involve linking Family Learning Support
more closely with the Parental Outreach Team. There may however be problems
with different funding streams.

The new structure will need to provide for easy and regular contacts between the
main teams working on parental involvement and those staff within the LEA who
have important links with parents, such as schools admissions and education
welfare.

There is also the work with parents undertaken by other Council services, such as
Social Services, and the voluntary sector. The proposals in the Government’s Green
Paper on Childrens Services should help ensure more “joined up” working in the
future.

Tower Hamlets has established a Working with Parents Consortium as a means of
facilitating better co-ordination and the Panel suggests looking at the merits of
establishing such a consortium in Haringey.

TOWER HAMLETS WORKING WITH PARENTS CONSORTIUM:

This was set up with the aim of improving links between organisations from the voluntary
and statutory sectors (Health, Education and Social Services) in order to ensure that
parents were better supported in their role. It also:

Promotes parent education and support

Provides a professional network for those working in and concerned with parent
education and support so that members can share information and expertise

Acts in an advisory capacity to schools, community organisations and the LEA
Works to raise levels of achievement in schools and contribute to school
effectiveness.

Recommendations:

That the LEA decide on the most appropriate structure to facilitate the

development of parental involvement taking account of resources available.

e That the expertise and effective links with the different communities developed

by the Parental Outreach team be used to best effect.

Scrutiny Review of Parental Involvement in Education — April 2004 Page 20 of 30



85

e That the key roles for the LEA in whatever structural arrangement is chosen be
as follows:

(i). Assisting schools in developing their work with parents
(if). Providing strategic direction

(iii). Building links with organisations working actively with parents from both
within and outside of the Council

(iv). Disseminating information
(v). Spreading good practice

o That specific consideration be given to the use of the Networked Learning
Communities for the spreading of good practice in work with parents.

e That costings that are realistic and sustainable be developed for funding the
development of parental involvement by the LEA.

e That regular contact be maintained by the LEA with all parents awaiting a school
place within the Borough.

e That the Steering Group look into the merits of setting up a Parents Consortium
in Haringey.

Data

7.8 The Panel received a breakdown of the Family Learning programmes currently
running in each school and some factual information about the location and number
of pupils attending supplementary schools. The Parental Outreach Team will also
have information on their school and community group contacts. The Panel thought
it was hard to get a clear picture of what was happening in each school and difficult
for the LEA to identify where schools were weaker or where there was good practice
that could be shared.

7.9 It appeared to the Panel that the schools with well developed relations with parents
were regularly analysing attendance at parents’ evenings and had strategies for
maximising attendance and communicating with parents who did not attend. We
were told that the link between the class teacher and parents is the one that is
valued most by parents. The Panel thinks that this is such a crucial interaction the
LEA should require schools to provide information about the level of attendance at
individual parents evenings and the efforts being made to communicate with parents
who do not attend.

Recommendations:
e That a system be set up to collect basic information from schools about any

initiatives involving parents, and from supplementary and language schools.
The information to be evaluated and disseminated as appropriate.

Scrutiny Review of Parental Involvement in Education — April 2004 Page 21 of 30



86

e The LEA should establish a system for collecting information from schools on
the level of attendance at parents evenings and the steps taken to communicate
with those parents who do not attend.

Headteacher’s role

7.10 Research evidence, confirmed by the evidence we received, confirms the important
of the Headteacher’'s role in establishing an ethos of working with parents as
partners in their children’s education. We heard evidence that whilst many schools
engaged effectively, undertook home visits and provided opportunities for parents to
work with them as friends and allies, some were not so good. Some schools may
say that their parents present particular difficulties but several schools within the
Borough, who operate under challenging circumstances, work extremely well with
parents.

7.11 We are firmly of the view that parental involvement needs to be embedded in the
ethos of all schools and for this to happen it must be led by the Headteacher and the
school’s governing body. There needs to be:

e a programme developed that will raise the profile of parental involvement with
headteachers and governing bodies. The LEA’s proposed parental involvement
conference in June should provide an excellent start.

e practical guidance provided to schools on how they can involve parents more. The
DfES material and Melian Mansfield’s paper on ‘How schools can encourage
parents’ are good sources and should mean that a pack can be put together easily.

Recommendations:

e That a specific strategy to persuade Headteachers and school governing bodies
of the value of prioritising action to develop parental involvement in schools be
developed.

e That the LEA allocate appropriate resources to improving performance in
schools where it has been identified that parental involvement requires
development and that these schools be targeted for action within a specified
timescale.

Developing Home/School Dialogue

7.12 Whilst family learning schemes and other planned initiatives are excellent, they have
their limitations. For instance, they cannot hope to cover more than a small
proportion of parents. Developing strong relationships between all teachers and
individual parents is vital to increasing involvement.

7.13 We learnt that there were several ways in which a dialogue with parents can be
developed:

e Information. Many parents feel ill - informed about wider education issues and
the curriculum. We heard how some authorities produce a range of information
booklets for parents, with translated versions available. These can cover basic
issues such as the curriculum, for particular year groups or Key Stages and ways

Scrutiny Review of Parental Involvement in Education — April 2004 Page 22 of 30



87

in which parents can support their children. We heard that the LEA is producing a
booklet on the British education system for distribution to parents (in different
languages). We have noted earlier in this report the excellent information that is
freely available from the DfES. The extent to which Haringey needs to produce
its own literature may therefore be limited but there may be a need for some
Haringey specific material. Information needs to be communicated imaginatively.
We heard that the LEA has in mind a “Welcome to Haringey” induction session
for parents new to the Borough.

e Parent teacher consultation meetings, often including the pupil, where parents
and teachers have a decent span of time to review the pupil’s past progress and
look forward. These are increasingly popular at secondary school level.

e More direct communication over pupil progress. Parents can feel that they are
only approached by schools if there is a problem. This particular point was made
by the African Caribbean Leadership Council in their presentation to us. They felt
that whilst schools and the LEA did communicate with parents, they were often
late in doing so and it was in relation to a particular problem. An ongoing
dialogue on pupil progress, focusing as strengths and weaknesses, would help
improve communication and possibly avert problems later. Letters, phone calls
and certificates conveying good news all help to avoid the situation where
parents feel they are only approached by the school if there is a problem.

e Year group meetings. These can be twice a year, focusing on what the children
are learning but also including some wider issues for discussion. Some parents
may feel less constrained talking about welfare issues, such as behaviour policy,
homework, the playground, in such a setting. Another option is meetings
targeted at a specific ethnic community group.

e A space for parents. Some LEAs have Parents’ Centres and examples are Tower
Hamlets and Newham. These centres give parents a space of their own away
from schools and can be used as a base for a variety of activities such as
meetings of parents groups, casework, mediation and possibly advocacy,
although there can be difficulties with the latter if the centre is funded by the LEA.
It is important that staff working with parents have the resources to undertake
development work as well as resolving crises. A space for parents independent of
schools and with access to a mediator/advocate could help to remedy power
imbalances between some groups of parents and schools. Centres are generally
funded by LEAs but at “arms length”. The centre in Tower Hamlets includes some
SEN support services. But wherever such a centre is located is likely to be a
considerable distance away for some parents. A feasibility study might be useful
to determine whether the benefits would justify the costs involved. An alternative
might be to develop one or more parents’ centres as part of the Children Centre
concept.

Recommendations:

e That full use be made of information produced by the DfES on involving parents
supplemented, as necessary, by Haringey specific material.

e That further consideration be given to introducing “Welcome to Haringey”
induction sessions for parents new to the Borough.

Scrutiny Review of Parental Involvement in Education — April 2004 Page 23 of 30



88

e That a feasibility study be undertaken on the merits of setting up of a specific
centre for parents within the Borough.

Accessibility

7.14 Schools need to be welcoming places for parents. According to research, a large
percentage (94%) of parents find schools welcoming. Paradoxically, the majority of
parents also find schools intimidating places. This is especially true of secondary
schools and from evidence we received it cuts across all social classes. The uneven
balance of power makes most parents feel at a disadvantage.

7.15 We were told again that small things can make a difference. Providing créches or
allowing parents to bring their children with them assists attendance levels at
parents’ evenings, ensuring that reception staff welcome parents and that there is
clear signposting in schools. Schools will be working towards compliance with the
Disability Discrimination Act and therefore will be aware of the importance of
providing for parents with disabilities.

7.16 In a recent DFES publication there is a welcome audit checklist:

Making Parents Welcome:

The recent DfES booklet “Involving Parents, Raising Achievement” includes the following
suggestions for ensuring that schools are making parents feel welcome:

o Parent friendly reception areas

e Making special help and support available to meet the cultural and linguistic needs of
families during the admission of new pupils

o Setting up a befriending scheme for new parents

e Having arrangements and procedures to respond quickly to parental anxieties and
concerns

e Recognising the special needs of parents such as those who lack confidence or
knowledge of the system or work long and difficult hours

Recommendation:

e That the LEA work with schools to ensure that they develop strategies for
making parents welcome.

Training and developing

7.17 We referred earlier to the research suggesting that a “deficit” attitude to parents still
persists amongst some teachers. We think that this is changing. Parental
involvement however is not an integral part of their professional culture. Teachers
may be excellent with pupils but may be less comfortable in dealing with parents and
can find it difficult to communicate effectively. Some teachers may feel intimidated by
parents. Whilst it is part of teacher training, involving parents is seen as a “bolt on”

Scrutiny Review of Parental Involvement in Education — April 2004 Page 24 of 30



89

rather than an integral part. There is virtually no whole school or other training within
Haringey or more widely available on how to work with parents more effectively.
More training for teachers is required to ensure that they are both comfortable and
effective in working with parents and INSET days should be used for this purpose. A
training module could also be developed for school governors by the PDC.
Communication skills training for teachers is something that should also be
considered.

Recommendation:

e That regular training sessions be introduced for teachers on effective working
and communication with parents

Harder to reach parents

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

From our meeting with the Haringey Standing Committee on Community Languages
we learnt more about the obstacles that some parents from ethnic minority groups
face and which may limit their ability to engage with schools:

e They may not have English as a first language
e They may not understand the way that the English education system works.

e In some countries, parents are not involved in schools and would only go to the
school when there was a problem.

e Some parents are from countries where there was little access to education and
some were illiterate.

The community groups emphasised the importance of making clear to parents what
was expected of them and the purpose of the involvement. As previously
mentioned, family learning initiatives can help to address these issues and provide
parents with the tools they need to play an active part.

However, there are issues in respect of the family learning initiatives:

e Sustainability. The vast majority of such work is funded by grants from various
different sources. Although the initiatives are excellent, their sustainability needs
to be considered.

e Coverage. Due in part to the means by which they are funded, provision for
working parents whose first language is English will be limited.

As referred to in paragraph 5.29, we learnt about the role of the supplementary and
language schools and the very large number of pupils who regularly attend these
schools in the Borough. Their potential influence is very considerable and the LEA
needs to be working closely with them. There is much work to be done in developing
and extending the links with these schools. They can provide the link that the LEA
and the schools need to reach some of the parents who are harder to reach. The
current problems experienced by the supplementary schools and the lack of a
consistent approach needs to be addressed by the LEA.

Scrutiny Review of Parental Involvement in Education — April 2004 Page 25 of 30



7.22

7.23

7.24

7.25

90

The Committee told us how parents very much want their children to learn their
community language. We know that children proficient in their own language are
likely to learn to a higher level in English. Turkish is available as a GCSE option and
the Somali education committee wants a GCSE in their language to be available and
is pursuing this with the examination accreditation authorities. We think the LEA
should support such initiatives as a means of helping to raise achievement levels.

The African Caribbean Leadership Council told us that although parents were happy
on the whole with schools some were not always comfortable dealing with schools.
Factors that could discourage parents included racism and perceived racism,
parents’ own educational experience, work commitments, poor communications and
social conditions. There was support for more courses for parents at schools,
newsletters and information evenings delivered in an accessible way.

The African Caribbean Leadership Council referred to frustration in their community
that issues raised repeatedly had not been successfully addressed. A weakness
that undermined confidence in the willingness and determination to address issues,
was the failure of the workforce at LEA, school and governing body level, and
particularly at senior levels, to reflect the diverse composition of the Borough. We
noted that the LEA has tried to address this imbalance at senior levels but without
much success. However, we heard that several senior posts have recently been
filled by people from ethnic minorities so these initiatives may starting to bear fruit.
Efforts should nevertheless be maintained.

At governing body level a targeted recruitment drive for more governors from the
different communities plus a support programme designed both to encourage and
build the capacity of these governors would help to address the problem.

Recommendations:

e That an evaluation of current family learning initiatives be undertaken that
includes a sustainability strategy

e That current initiatives by the LEA to build links with supplementary schools be
strongly supported and that the following issues be specifically addressed:

>

>

Assistance with the cost of hiring premises
The possibility of developing SHARE projects with them
The provision of guidance on the requirements of the national curriculum

Guidance and assistance on applying for available grant funding

e That any increase in the level of assistance provided for supplementary schools
be subject to the establishment of satisfactory monitoring arrangements.

e The LEA support initiatives by the community groups to secure recognised
examination accreditation for their languages.

e That the LEA undertakes further developmental work to strengthen links with
community groups and ethnic minority organisations.

Scrutiny Review of Parental Involvement in Education — April 2004 Page 26 of 30



91

e That efforts to ensure that the ethnic breakdown of senior management
positions within the LEA are reflective of the local community be maintained and
additional strategies be considered to remedy the current imbalance.

e That the LEA undertake a targeted recruitment drive for school governors from
the different communities and devise a support programme to encourage and
build the capacity of these governors

LEA Consultation with Parents

7.26 Parents have a collective voice as part of school governing bodies. However, parent
governors often find it hard to make their voice heard within meetings. Parents may
feel intimidated and loath to express their opinions. They can feel uncomfortable at
challenging professionals. It is also difficult to get parents to stand as governors in
some areas. Ethnic minority communities tend to be under represented.

7.27 There is currently a lack of Borough wide organisations representing parents. We
were unable to find any specific group that could provide us with a collective view of
parents on parental involvement within the Borough for the purposes of this review.
There is a Parent Governor Forum but, despite considerable efforts, its meetings are
not well attended. We have learnt of groups e.g. Haringey Parents in the west of the
borough. We understand that the Council has a corporate consultation database but
there are few groups on it whose prime function is to represent parents of school age
children. The LEA needs to identify all existing groups and develop systems for
encouraging their involvement in the development of policy at LEA level.

7.28 The LEA’s consultation methods were outside the remit of this review but the
effectiveness of consultation does impinge on parental involvement. We understand
that LEA guidelines on general principles relating to consultation are currently being
drafted. At present there is no set way in which consultations are undertaken. If
parents need to be reached, the LEA normally accesses them via schools.

7.29 We heard how Tower Hamlets had set up a Parents Panel as part of its commitment
to involving parents in decision making at all levels. This allows parents to be
consulted on a range of education issues. Not all parents are comfortable with
meetings and consideration needs to be given to setting up mechanisms that provide
feedback that is representative of all parents.

TOWER HAMLETS PARENTS’ PANEL.:

320 parents agreed to be part of a Panel to be contacted and interviewed by telephone
on a range of education-related issues. The first survey was completed in November
2001 and asked parents for their views on their priorities for education. Their views
were fed into the new Education Development Plan. Since then, parents have been
consulted on admission and exclusion policies, school transport, lifelong learning
opportunities, summer holiday activities and pupil behaviour. When questioned recently,
84% of Panel members said that they were happy to remain on the Panel.

Scrutiny Review of Parental Involvement in Education — April 2004 Page 27 of 30



92

7.30 The role of Parent Teacher Associations (PTAs) or Home/School Associations has
potential for development beyond fund raising. Some have developed their role and
act as discussion forums for a range of educational issues including school
organisation and management.

7.31 There is a lack of current information about the number of PTAs/ HSAs in the
Borough. The last survey, undertaken some time ago by Haringey Council of
Parent-Teacher Association, showed that about 60% of schools had PTAs. The
roles and the level of activity varied but included regular meetings, fundraising and
social events and some discussion of educational issues. A number employ a
system of class representatives who liaise with other parents in the class and
thereby seek to involve all. If only a few parents are involved in the organisation it
can place a heavy burden on them. In some situations the PTA/HSA may offer
schools a means by which they can build parental involvement.

Recommendations:

e That further consideration be given by the LEA about how it consults with
parents on educational issues and, in particular, ensuring the views obtained are
truly representative. This should include the merits of setting up a parents panel
on the lines of the Tower Hamlets panel.

e That training be available to governors on how best to encourage greater
parental involvement.

e That a survey of PTAs/HSAs within the Borough be undertaken and that
consideration be given by the LEA to developing guidance to schools on
starting PTAs/HSAs and on developing the role of existing associations.

Secondary Schools

7.32 Whilst all of the matters that have been referred to so far apply equally to secondary
and primary schools, it is recognised that there are particular difficulties in involving
parents with secondary schools;

e Parents often live further afield from the school than with primary schools.

e There is not the same casual daily contact with parents that takes place in
primary schools.

e Pupils often feel less comfortable with having their parents involved.
e Pupils are taught by a far greater number of teachers.
e Parents feel particularly intimidated by secondary schools
7.33 We know that a number of the secondary schools in the borough have made huge
efforts to involve parents more. Gladesmore has secured significant community

funding to support a major parental involvement programme and the work at White
Hart Lane is described below. We know that there are few family learning schemes

Scrutiny Review of Parental Involvement in Education — April 2004 Page 28 of 30



93

operating in secondary schools in the Borough. The Parental Outreach Team does
not have the resources currently to work with secondary schools.

WHITE HART LANE SCHOOL:

e Various family learning initiatives are in operation at the school. The classes had
originally just been in ESOL. They have now expanded to cover other subjects
such as computing and attracted various people from across the communities.
The school used feeder primary schools to promote the courses. The classes
created a good impression of the school and made it more likely that parents
would get involved in other school activities such as parents evenings and
governors meetings. The courses have helped break down barriers and have
helped to change the attitude of some children with disciplinary problems.

e Parents are closely involved in discipline issues and are contacted in the event
of in there being a particular issue. Overseas parents often had very high
expectations and were very supportive of actions to enforce discipline.

e The school had merged the teaching of English as a second language, special
educational needs and pastoral care provision into one unit called “Gateway”
and this has been very successful. They involve parents, who sometimes attend
classes.

7.34 The Panel would have liked to investigate secondary practices in more depth. We
think there is a need to develop particular strategies with the schools to encourage
parental involvement at this level and to learn how good practice can best be shared.

Recommendation:

e That the differing needs and challenges presented by developing parental
involvement in secondary schools be identified and addressed strategically by
the Steering Group.

Evaluation and Monitoring

7.35 Parental involvement is costly in terms of the time and commitment levels required
from all those involved. The work with parents within the LEA and in schools must
be planned with objectives and success indicators developed that will enable the
outcomes to be measured.

Recommendation:

e That the Steering Group develop a framework for effective monitoring and
evaluation .

Scrutiny Review of Parental Involvement in Education — April 2004 Page 29 of 30



94

APPENDIX 1
The following individuals/organisations assisted with the review:

Councillor Judy Bax — Cabinet Member for Lifelong Learning

Sharon Bolton — Haringey LEA

Rob Graham — Haringey LEA

Veena Sharma — HALS

Mrs. Etta Kwaja — Chair, African Caribbean Leadership Council’'s (ACLC) Education
Committee

Dr. Elizabeth Jordan - ACLC education sub-team and Strikers Consultancy Ltd.
Haringey Racial Equality Council

Haringey Standing Committee on Community Languages

Melian Mansfield - Chair — Haringey Early Years Partnership

Kath Howell - Haringey Association of School Governing Bodies

Metteu Wallace, Gaial Quest and Robert Singh - Risley Avenue Primary School
White Hart Lane School

South Harringay Infant School

Sarah Gale — London Borough of Tower Hamlets

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Education Service

Scrutiny Review of Parental Involvement in Education — April 2004 Page 30 of 30



Agenda Iltem 10 %

Item 10

ii) Sports Provision - update

————— Original Message-----
From: Knight, Rachael

Sent: 19 November 2009 14:32
To: 'info@dcsf.gsi.gov.uk'
Subject: Attention: Leona Smith

Dear Leona,
Thank you for your help during our conversation earlier today.

As discussed, I am working with Southwark's Children's Services and
Education scrutiny sub-committee. The committee's councillors would be
grateful if the DCSF could clarify what is meant by the provision of "5
hours of high-quality PE and sport per week, in and out of school".

In particular:

- is the expectation that the local authority will ensure 5 hours are
provided for every 5-16 year-old?

- to what extent should the hours be provided by schools?;

- and does "access" indicate that the 5 hours of sports activities
simply need to be available for the child to opt into within a certain
proximity to their school/local area?

Thank you in advance for your help.
Kind regards,

Rachael Knight

Scrutiny Project Manager
Communities, Law and Governance
Southwark Council

160 Tooley St, London SEl1 2TZ
Ph.: 020 7525 7291

Postal address:

Scrutiny Team

Communities, Law and Governance,
PO Box 64529

London SE1 5LX



96

From: info@dcsf.gsi.gov.uk [mailto:info@dcsf.gsi.gov.uk]
Sent: 25 November 2009 13:28

To: Knight, Rachael

Subject: Case Reference 2009/0098374

Dear Ms Knight
Thank you for your email dated 19 November about physical education (PE) in schools.

PE is a compulsory part of the national curriculum for all pupils aged 5-16 in England.
However, the Department cannot stipulate by law how much time schools should devote
to PE or any other national curriculum subject - this is a matter for schools to decide.

That said, the Government believes PE is important for children and young people.
Work undertaken by the Qualifications and Curriculum Development Authority (QCDA)
has shown how placing PE and sport at the heart of a broad and balanced curriculum
can improve attendance, behaviour and attainment. PE and sport build self-esteem,
teamwork and leadership skills. PE and sport are also important because they can help
build an inclusive society, raise levels of participation in sport after pupils leave school,
and positively affect the health of the nation.

Back in 2002 only about one in four children aged 5-16 were doing two hours of high
quality PE and sport each week. We introduced a strategy in 2003 to address this and
now around nine out of every ten pupils are doing the two hours each week. It is our
target that everyone who goes to school should be able to take part in up to five hours of
high quality PE and sport each week.

You may find the following web site of interest:
www.teachernet.gov.uk/teachingandlearning/subjects/pe/curriculum/

I hope you find this information helpful.

Yours sincerely

Paul Quinn
Public Communications Unit
www.dcsf.gov.uk

ﬁ department for
children, schools and families




97

From the recommended link:
www.teachernet.qgov.uk/teachingandlearning/subjects/pe/curriculum/:

“PE is a National Curriculum foundation subject compulsory at all Key Stages for all
pupils. Pupils should learn a variety of activities in accordance with the subject's
programme of study, including dance, games and gymnastics at Key Stage 1. During
Key Stages 2 to 4, teachers must offer two other areas from: swimming and water
safety, athletics and outdoor and adventurous activities.

Swimming and water safety is a statutory activity at Key Stage 2 in order that pupils
achieve the teaching requirements outlined in the programme of study, unless already
done so at Key Stage 1. Pupils should be able to swim unaided over a distance of at
least 25 metres.

The DCSF/QCA recommends at least 75 minutes of curriculum time per week to
deliver the PE programme of study at Key Stages 1 to 2 and 90 minutes at Key Stage
3. No recommendation is made for Key Stage 4 where the focus is on health, fitness
and well-being.”



% Agenda Item 11

Children’s Services and Education Scrutiny Sub-Committee
Work Programme - 2009/10

September 8 2009

1.

‘Your child, your school, our future’ White Paper - summary & briefing w Southwark perspective —
Terry Parkin presenting

Impact on schooling & early years arrangements for children from Lakanal

Early Years Single Funding Formula - DCSF paper as entry for scoping Early Years review

Work programme planning

October 5 2009

Early Years review — verbal briefing

Update on Single Funding Formula

Child trafficking & forced marriage

Update on the Southwark Schools for the Future programme

Feedback from the Head Teachers’ executive meeting

||, lw N~

Update work programme

November 9 2009

Report on validated school results

Early Years review - continued

Parental engagement in primary schools - scope review

Information items

S e A e

Update work programme

January 19 2010

Executive Interview with Clirs Lisa Rajan and Nick Stanton

Annual safeguarding report - referral and assessment

Single Funding Formula - update

Early Years review - continued

Parental Engagement in primary schools

Matters Arising - i) Lakanal Fire ; ii) Sports provision

N|o|a |0~

Update work programme

March 2 2010

Parental engagement - committee to consider their draft report

Early Years - committee to consider their draft report

Report back on review of integrated youth provision (shifted from the Jan meeting);

Overview of the project for 14 to 19 year olds coordinated by the Learning Skills Council

Update on Single Funding Formula

AR W IN] =

Look back over earlier reports — e.g. School bullying report etc. (time permitted)




Children’s Services and Education Scrutiny Sub-Committee 2009/2010
Distribution List

Copies Copies
Members and Reserves Trade Unions
Councillor Barrie Hargrove (Chair) 1 Unison 1
Councillor Nick Vineall (Vice-Chair) 1 Roy Fielding, GMB/APEX 1
Councillor Jelil Ladipo 1
Councillor Eliza Mann 1
Councillor Jonathan Mitchell 1 TOTAL DISTRIBUTION 45
Councillor Sandra Rhule 1
Councillor Veronica Ward 1
Councillor Michelle Holford 1
Councillor James Barber 1
Councillor Andrew Pakes 1
Councillor Althea Smith 1
Education Representatives
Revd Nicholas Elder 1
Jane Hole 1
Colin McKenzie Elliott 1
Other Members
Councillor Fiona Colley 1
Councillor Lisa Rajan 1
Councillor Nick Stanton 1
Libraries [Albion / Dulwich / Newington / Local Studies] 6
Council Officers
Scrutiny Team [spares] 10
Shelley Burke, Head of Overview & Scrutiny 1
Romi Bowen, Director of Children’s Services 1
Terry Parkin, Deputy Director of Children’s Services 1
Rory. Patterson, Assistar?t Director of Specialist Children’s 1
Services and Safeguarding
Mike Smith, Assistant Director of Community Services 1
EIajne Allegretti', Children’s Trust Development Manager, 1
Children’s Services
Pauline Armour, Assistant Director of Access & Inclusion 1
Eleanor Parkin, Departmental Co-ordinator, Children's Services 1
Karl Murray, Head of Services for Young People 1
Sarah Feasey, Principal Lawyer, Strategic Services 1

For amendments to this list or for extra copies of the agenda, contact the scrutiny team — ph.: 020 7525 7291 or
e-mail: scrutiny@southwark.gov.uk.




	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Executive Interviews
	7 Single Funding Formula - update
	Single Funding Formula consultation document
	Letter from the Department for Children, Schools and Families

	8 Early Years Review - continued
	9 Parental Engagement in Primary Schools - continued
	Haringey scrutiny report on parental enagement_2004

	10 Matters Arising
	11 Update Work Programme
	

